TRADITION
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT NOS. 1-11
PORT ST. LUCIE

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

OCTOBER 1, 2025
11:00A.M.

Special District Services, Inc.
The Oaks Center
2501A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410

www.traditioncddl.org
www.traditioncdd2.org
www.traditioncdd3.org
www.traditioncdd4.org
www.traditioncdd5.org
www.traditioncdd6.org
www.traditioncdd7.org
www.traditioncdd8.org
www.traditioncdd9.org
www.traditioncdd10.org
www.traditioncddl1l.org

561.630.4922 Telephone
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free
561.630.4923 Facsimil



http://www.traditioncdd1.org/
http://www.traditioncdd2.org/
http://www.traditioncdd3.org/
http://www.traditioncdd4.org/
http://www.traditioncdd5.org/
http://www.traditioncdd6.org/
http://www.traditioncdd7.org/
http://www.traditioncdd8.org/
http://www.traditioncdd9.org/
http://www.traditioncdd10.org/
http://www.traditioncdd11.org/

J.

K.

MmO 0w >

AGENDA
TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.’S 1-11
Tradition Town Hall
10799 SW Civic Lane
Port St. Lucie, FL. 34987
OR
Join Zoom Meeting:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3341025012?0mn=83274862167
Meeting ID: 334 102 5012
Dial-In: 1 929 436 2866
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
October 1, 2025
11:00 a.m.

Call to Order

Proof of PUBLICAtION. ... .o e Page 1
Establish Quorum

Additions or Deletions

Comments from the Public Not on the Agenda

Consent Items

1. Approval of September 3, 2025, Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes............ Page 3
2. Approval of WA #19-143-196; 11233 SW Park Village Court — Pool................c..cooiiinin. Page 9
3. Approval of Resolution No. 2025-21; Adopting Annual Report of Goals, Objectives, and
Performance Measures and Standards.............c.ooiiiiiiiii i Page 12
4. Approval of Direct Collections Agreement; Fiscal Year 2026............ccccvviiiiiiiiiininn... Page 16
5. Approval of Maintenance Services AZIeEMENt. ..........ueuuiirtentiteitteteiteaeeiaaeaeaneennns Page 22
Old Business
1. Trrigation FranchisSe Agreement. ... ....oouuiinuiiniiii it e eeaeen Page 37

2. TIrrigation Rate Study

. New Business

1. Report from Lake Banks Committee Chair
2. Notice of Receipt for Annual Audit...........ooiiiiiiiiii e Page 52
3. Consider RFP’s for Aquatic Maintenance. ............o.vvueeiiiiieiaiiiiteiteie et eeenan Page 89

Administrative Matters
1. Manager’s Report

2. Attorney’s Report

3. Engineer’s Report

4. FInancial RePOTt. ... ..ot e e Page 93
5. Founder’s Report

Board Member Discussion Requests and Comments

Adjourn


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3341025012?omn=83274862167

TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NOS. 1-11
MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Tradition Community Development District Nos. 1-11
("Districts™) will conduct Regular Board Meetings of the Board of Supervisors ("Board™) for the
purpose of conducting the business of the Districts that may properly come before the Board. The
following meetings will be held at 11:00 a.m. at Tradition Town Hall located at 10799 SW Civic
Lane, Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 on the following dates:

*Qctober 1, 2025*
November 5, 2025
December 3, 2025
*January 7, 2026*
February 4, 2026
March 4, 2026
*April 1, 2026*
May 6, 2026
June 3, 2026
*July 1, 2026*
August 5, 2026
September 2, 2026

*Irrigation Rate Committee Meeting - 9:00 a.m.
Southern Grove CDD Meeting - 10:30 a.m.
Tradition CDD Meeting - 11:00 a.m.

*An Irrigation Committee Meeting will take place at 9:00 a.m. at Tradition Town Hall located at 10799
SW Civic Lane, Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 on the above dates, as indicated.*

The meetings are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida
law for community development districts. Meetings may be continued to a date, time and place to be
specified on the record. A copy of the agenda for the meetings may be obtained from the Districts’
websites or at the offices of the District Manager, Special District Services, Inc., 10807 SW Tradition
Square, Port St. Lucie, Florida.

There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors will participate by telephone; therefore, a
speaker telephone may be present at the meeting location so that one or more Supervisors may attend
the meeting and be fully informed of the discussions taking place.

Any person requiring special accommodations at these meetings because of a disability or physical
impairment should contact the District Office at 772-345-5119 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 at
least five calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the
Florida Relay Service at 1-800-955-8770, who can aid you in contacting the District Office.

Each person who decides to appeal any action taken at a meeting is advised that they will need a record
of the proceedings and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the
proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based.

Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice.



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NOS. 1-11
www.traditioncddl.org

PUBLISH: ST. LUCIE NEWS TRIBUNE 09/10/25



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NOS. 1-11
Tradition Town Hall
10799 SW Civic Lane
Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987
REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING
September 3, 2025
11:00 a.m.

A CALL TO ORDER

The Regular Board Meeting of the Tradition Community Development District Nos. 1-11 of September
3, 2025, was called to order at 11:00 a.m. in the Tradition Town Hall located at 10799 SW Civic Lane,
Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987.

B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION

Proof of publication was presented that showed notice of the Regular Board Meeting and Public
Hearing had been published in the St. Lucie News Tribune on August 14" and August 21, 2025, as part
of the District’s Fiscal Year 2024/2025 as legally required.

C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM

It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum, and it was in
order to proceed with the meeting:

CDD#'s1,2,7,8,9,10& 11

Chairman Eric Sexauer Present
Vice Chairman William Pittsley Present
Supervisor Tara Toto Present
Supervisor Karl Albertson Present
Supervisor Jonas Read Present
CDD#3

Supervisor Joe Piatcheck Absent
Chairman Isiah Steinberg Present
Supervisor Stan Briggs Absent
Vice Chair Rosario “Roy” Perconte Present
Supervisor Suzanne Killeen Present
CDD #4

Chairman Gail Cost Present
Vice Chairman Rich Giglia Present
Supervisor Rob Siedlecki Absent
Supervisor Lauren Leandre Present
Supervisor Drew Wesley Present
CDD #5

Supervisor Cathy Powers Present




Chairperson Chris King Present
Supervisor Dave Lasher Present
Supervisor Rick Dixon Present (via Zoom)
Vice Chairman Joe Pinto Present
CDD #6

Chairman Jerry Krbec Present

Vice Chairman Keith Bulkin Present (via Zoom)
Supervisor George Russell Present
Supervisor John Slicher Present (via Zoom)
Supervisor Peter Webb Present

Staff members in attendance were:

District Manager

Frank Sakuma

Special District Services, Inc.

District Manager

Stephanie Brown

Special District Services, Inc.

Assistant District Manager

Jessica Wargo

Special District Services, Inc.

District Manager

Andrew Karmeris

Special District Services, Inc.

District Counsel

Jonathan Johnson

Kutak Rock

District Engineer

Stef Matthes

Culpepper and Terpening

Also present: Todd Wodraska with Special District Servies, Inc.

Via Zoom: Bennett Davenport and Lindsay Whelan with Kutak Rock.

D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA

There were no additions or deletions to the agenda.

E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC NOT ON THE AGENDA

Cathy Sleeple stated that staff should face the public.

Note: At approximately 11:04 a.m., Mr. Sakuma recessed the Regular Board Meeting and opened the
Public Hearing on the Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget.

F. PUBLIC HEARING-ADOPTING FISCAL YEAR BUDGET 2025/2026 FINAL

BUDGET

1. Proof of Publication

The Notice of Public Hearing for the Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget was published on August

14, 2025, & August 21, 2025, in the St. Lucie News Tribune, as legally required.

2. Receive Public Comments on Adopting Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget

Mr. Karmeris presented the Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget and explained the new line item for

irrigation water for CDD Nos. 7-11.




Steve Kunos (Emory) asked why irrigation fees were not charged through the HOA. Mr. Albertson
responded that the City of Port St. Lucie preferred to have one contract with the District as opposed to
multiple contracts with each individual community HOAs.

Larry Schmidt (Emory) asked if the water assessment would be a lifetime charge. Mr. Sexauer
responded that there would be a long-term charge for residents even if entered into a franchise
agreement.

Mary Milmore suggested residents contact their local Council Members regarding the Franchise
Agreement.

Dr. Powers requested paper copies of the budget be provided in future budget meetings and asked for
an update on the letter to the community regarding the lake banks restoration project. Mr. Sakuma
responded that paper copies could be provided upon the Board’s request, and he would get the
community letter sent out.

3. Consider Resolution No. 2025-17; Adopting Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget
Resolution No. 2025-17 was presented, entitled:
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-17

THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE
TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
RELATING TO THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS AND
ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE TRADITION COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NOS. 1-11 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2025, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30,
2026.

A motion was made by CDD Nos. 1, 2, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 Mr. Albertson, seconded by Mr. Read, adopting
Resolution 2025-17 Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget, as presented. The motion passed
unanimously.

A motion was made by CDD No. 3 Mr. Steinberg, seconded by Mr. Perconte, adopting Resolution
2025-17 Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget, as presented. The motion passed unanimously.

A motion was made by CDD No. 4 Ms. Cost, seconded by Mr. Wesley, adopting Resolution 2025-17
Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget, as presented. The motion passed unanimously.

A motion was made by CDD No. 5 Mr. Lasher seconded by Mr. Pinto, adopting Resolution 2025-17
Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget, as presented. The motion passed unanimously.

A motion was made by CDD No. 6 Mr. Krbec, seconded by Mr. Russell, adopting Resolution 2025-
17 Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget, as presented. The motion passed unanimously.

4. Consider Resolution No. 2025-18; Levying Non-Ad Valorem Assessments for
Tradition CDD No’s 1-11 for the Fiscal Year 2025/2026

Resolution No. 2025-18 was presented entitled:



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-18

RESOLUTION OF THE TRADITION COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 LEVYING NON-AD VALOREM
ASSESSMENTS FOR THE  TRADITION COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NOS. 1-11 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2025, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30,
2026.

A motion was made by CDD District Nos. 1, 2, 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11, Mr. Albertson, seconded by Mr.
Read, adopting Resolution 2025-18 Levying Non-Ad Valorem Assessments for Tradition CDD Nos.
1-11 for the Fiscal Year 2025/2026, as presented. The motion passed unanimously.

A motion made by CDD No. 3 Mr. Steinberg, seconded by Mr. Perconte, adopting Resolution 2025-
18 Levying Non-Ad Valorem Assessments for Tradition CDD’s No’s 1-11 for the Fiscal Year
2025/2026, as presented. The motion passed unanimously.

A motion was made by CDD No. 4 Ms. Cost, seconded by Mr. Wesley, adopting Resolution 2025-18
Levying Non-Ad Valorem Assessments for Tradition CDD’s No’s 1-11 for the Fiscal Year 2025/2026,
as presented. The motion passed unanimously.

A motion was made by CDD No. 5 Mr. Lasher, seconded by Mr. Pinto, adopting Resolution 2025-18
Levying Non-Ad Valorem Assessments for Tradition CDD’s No’s 1-11 for the Fiscal Year 2025/2026,
as presented. The motion passed unanimously.

A motion was made by CDD No. 6 Mr. Krbec, seconded by Mr. Russell, adopting Resolution 2025-
18 Levying Non-Ad Valorem Assessments for Tradition CDD’s No’s 1-11 for the Fiscal Year
2025/2026, as presented. The motion passed unanimously.

Note At approximately 11:47 a.m., Mr. Sakuma closed the Public Hearing on the Fiscal Year
2025/2026 Final Budget and reconvened the Regular Board Meeting.

G. CONSENT ITEMS

1. Approval of August 6, 2025, Regular Board Meeting Minutes

2. Approve WA #19-143-194; Brynlie Amenity Center - SWM

3. Approval of WA #19-143-195; Coffee Rush — The Landing at Tradition; Irrigation
4. Approval of OpenGov Enterprise Asset Management Application

A motion was made by CDD No. 1 Mr. Albertson, seconded by Mr. Read, approving all the above
Consent Items, as presented. The motion passed unanimously.

H. OLD BUSINESS
1. lIrrigation Franchise Agreement

Mr. Albertson stated that the current request to execute the Franchise Agreement within the next 90
days was still in progress.



2. lIrrigation Rate Study

Mr. Sakuma notified the Board that he had met with Ryan Smith of Ryper Water Analytics, and they
anticipate a 30-day turnaround on initial results once the necessary information has been received.

. NEW BUSINESS
There were no matters of New Business to come before the Board.
J. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1. Manager’s Report

Mr. Sakuma reminded the Board to complete the annual ethics training due by December 31. 2025. He
also stated that training would be provided onsite by District Counsel.

2. Attorney’s Report
Mr. Johnson of Kutak Rock introduced himself. He had nothing further to report.

3. Engineer’s Report
The District Engineer had nothing further to report.
Dr. Powers requested an update on the lake banks restoration. Mr. Matthes responded that he
recommended scheduling the next Lake Banks Committee Meeting to discuss which lakes to start with
and the amount of funds that would be needed.

4. Financial Report

Mr. Sakuma notified the Board that the financial report was included in the meeting package and Mr.
Karmeris was present to answer any questions.

5. Founder’s Report

Mr. Sexauer stated that the grand opening for the Heart was held on August 23, 2025; Stars and Stripes
should be completed in November and Regional Park completion in Q1 of 2026.

K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

Dr. Powers asked when did Solitude perform maintenance on the lakes. Mr. Matthes responded that he
receives a monthly report that he will distribute to the Board. Dr. Powers also voiced her concern about
tape grass.

Ms. Leandre asked if the litter was being collected out of the lakes by Solitude. Mr. Sakuma responded
that he would review the contract and bring the information back to the Board.

L. ADJORNMENT



There being no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Sexauer adjourned the meeting at 12:28
p.m. and Mr. Read seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Secretary (B. Frank Sakuma, Jr.) Chair (Eric Sexauer)



Tradition Community District Nos. 1-11
y MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Supervisors
From: Jesse Wargo, Assistant District Manager
Date: September 18, 2025

Board Meeting Date: October 1, 2025

SUBJECT

Work Authorization (WA) WA-19-143-196; 11233 SW Park Village Court - Pool

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Ratify CDD Engineer’s approval of the proposed temporary use of the CDD Water Management
Tract under the following conditions.

1. Schedule a preconstruction meeting with the CDD prior to start of an construction.

2. Sediment and turbid water shall be prevented from entering the CDD’s stormwater
management system. This typically includes installation of silt fence, trenched into the
ground, on the water side of any soil stock piled within or adjacent to the CDD Stormwater

Management Tract.
3. Ground surface within the Surface Water Management tract shall be regraded and

sodded to its original condition including its original slope within 6 months of land

disturbance.
4. Any sediment or soil entering the lake shall be removed immediately.

GENERAL INFORMATION
On September 11 2025, the Tradition CDD Engineer received a request to temporarily use a
portion of the upland portion of the Water Management Tract L7 located on parcel ID 4317-500-

0012-000-7, which has been accepted by the CDD for operation and maintenance. Once the
pool has been constructed, the CDD property will be restored to pre-construction conditions.

DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL REVIEW
Not applicable.

FUNDING REVIEW

This project is not expected to impact the CDD Stormwater System operational budget.



Tradition Community Development District
BOARD AGENDA ITEM
Board Meeting Date: October 1, 2025

Subject: TR - 11233 SW Park Village Court - Pool
Work Authorization No. WA-19-143-196
C&T Project No. 19-143.TR6.038.0925.R

Background:
On September 11 2025, the Tradition CDD Engineer received a request to
temporarily use a portion of the upland portion of the Water Management Tract
L7 located on parcel ID 4317-500-0012-000-7, which has been accepted by the
CDD for operation and maintenance. Once the pool has been constructed, the
CDD property will be restored to pre-construction conditions.

Recommended Action:
Ratify CDD Engineer’s approval of the proposed temporary use of the CDD
Water Management Tract under the following conditions.

1. Schedule a preconstruction meeting with the CDD prior to start of any
construction.

2. Sediment and turbid water shall be prevented from entering the
CDD’s stormwater management system. This typically includes
installation of silt fence, trenched into the ground, on the water side of
any soil stock piled within or adjacent to the CDD Stormwater
Management Tract.

3. Ground surface within the Surface Water Management tract shall be
regraded and sodded to its original condition including its original
slope within 6 months of land disturbance.

4. Any sediment or soil entering the lake shall be removed immediately.

Location: Tradition Community Development District CDD.06
Within Tradition Irrigation Service Area? Yes

Fiscal Information: This project does not include infrastructure dedicated to the CDD. It is not
expected to impact the CDD Stormwater System operational budget.

Grant Related? No
Additional Comments: None

Board Action:
Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken:

Item Prepared by: Stefan K. Matthes, PE September 18, 2025






Tradition Community District Nos. 1-11 -
yE MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Supervisors
From: Jesse Wargo, Assistant District Manager
Date: October 1, 2025

Board Meeting Date: October 1, 2025

SUBJECT

Consider Resolution No. 2025-21; Adopting an Annual Report of Goals, Objectives, and
Performance Measures and Standards.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approving Resolution No. 2025-21 for District Nos. 1-11; Adopting the
district's Annual Report of Goals Objectives, and Performance Measures and Standards.

GENERAL INFORMATION

A resolution of the board of supervisors of the Tradition Community Development District Nos.
1-11 adopting the district's an Annual Report of Goals, Objectives, and Performance Measures

and Standards.
DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL REVIEW
N/A

FUNDING REVIEW

No impact on budget or financial condition.



RESOLUTION 2025-21

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE
TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NOS. 1-11;
ADOPTING AN ANNUAL REPORT OF GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND
PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND STANDARDS; PROVIDING A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Tradition Community Development District (the “District”) is a local unit
of special-purpose government organized and existing under and pursuant to Chapters 189 and
190, Florida Statutes, as amended; and

WHEREAS, effective July 1, 2024, the Florida Legislature adopted House Bill 7013,
codified as Chapter 2024-136, Laws of Florida, and creating Section 189.0694, Florida Statutes;
and

WHEREAS, the District adopted Resolution 2024-22 on August 7, 2024, establishing
goals and objectives for the District and creating performance measures and standards to evaluate
the District’s achievement of those goals and objectives; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 189.0694, Florida Statutes, the District must adopt and
publish on its website an annual report prior to December 1% of each year, describing the goals and
objectives achieved by the district, as well as the performance measures and standards used by the
district to make this determination, and any goals or objectives the district failed to achieve.

WHEREAS, the District Manager has the annual report of the District’s goals, objectives,
and performance measures and standards attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit A (the
“Annual Report”) and presented the Annual Report to the Board of the District; and

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) finds that it is in the best
interests of the District to adopt by resolution the attached annual report of the goals, objectives
and performance measures and standards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS OF THE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT:

SECTION 1. The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference are
incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution.

SECTION 2. The District Board of Supervisors hereby adopts the Annual Report
regarding the District’s success or failure in achieving the adopted goals and objectives and directs
the District Manager to take all necessary actions to comply with Section 189.0694, Florida
Statutes.

SECTION 3. If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other
provisions shall remain in full force and effect.



SECTION 4. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in
effect unless rescinded or repealed.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this day of , 2025.

ATTEST: COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Print name: Print name:
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman, Board of Supervisors

Exhibit A: Annual Report of Performance Measures/Standards



Exhibit A

Program/Activity: District Administration
Goal: Remain compliant with Florida Law for all district meetings
Objectives:

e Notice all District regular, special, and public hearing meetings
e Conduct all post-meeting activities
e District records retained in compliance with Florida Sunshine Laws

Performance Measures:

e All Meetings publicly noticed as required (YES)
e Meeting minutes and post-meeting action completed (YES)
e District records retained as required by law (YES)

Program/Activity: District Finance
Goal: Remain Compliant with Florida Law for all district financing activities
Objectives:

e District adopted fiscal year budget

e District amended budget at end of fiscal year

e Process all District finance accounts receivable and payable
e Support District annual financial audit activities

Performance Measures:

District adopted fiscal year budget (YES)
District amended budget at end of fiscal year (YES)
District accounts receivable/payable processed for the year (YES)
“No findings” for annual financial audit (NO)
o If “yes” explain

Program/Activity: District Operations
Goal: Insure, Operate and Maintain District owned Infrastructure & assets
Objectives:

e Annual renewal of District insurance policy(s)
e Contracted Services for District operations in effect
e Compliance with all required permits

Performance Measures:

e District insurance renewed and in force (YES)
e Contracted Services in force for all District operations (YES)
e Permits in compliance (YES)



KUTAKROCK Kutak Rock LLP

107 West College Avenue, Tallahassee, FL 32301-7707
office 850.692.7300

MEMORANDUM
- FROM: Kutak Rock LLP
TO: Board of Supervisors
DATE: October 1, 2025

Subject: Direct Collection Agreement for Fiscal Year 2026

Staff Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board approve the form of the Direct Collection Agreement for FY 2026.

General Information

The Tradition Community Development Districts (collectively, the “Districts”) have the benefit
of having their assessments included on the St. Lucie County Tax Roll and collected by the St.
Lucie County Tax Collector. This benefits the Districts because they do not need to incur the
substantial time and expense that would ordinarily be required to collect assessments from each
lot owner. This is most commonly utilized for platted lots owned by residential end users.

In some cases, however, it makes sense for the District to collect assessments from certain
landowners directly. Most frequently, this will involve a landowner that owns a significant
amount of property in the District. In those cases, for cost efficiencies we will collect those
assessments off the tax roll and directly enter into an agreement with the property owner
whereby they agree to pay the assessments levied on their property according to the amount and
at the time specified in your Annual Assessment Resolution.

District Legal Counsel Review

The District’s attorneys prepared by this form of Agreement. Your District Manager shall
finalize the individual agreements with all applicable entities after approval by the Board.

Funding Review

This Agreement is not expected to affect the District’s financial condition.

1



DIRECT COLLECT AGREEMENT
FY 2026

This AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into effective as of October 1,
2026 (“Effective Date”), by and between:

TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 1, a local unit of
special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, located
St. Lucie County, Florida (“County”), and whose mailing address is District Manager, c/o
Special District Services, Inc., 10521 SW Village Center Dr., Suite #203, Port St. Lucie,
FL 34987 (hereinafter “District No. 1”); and

[DEVELOPER OR LANDOWNER ENTITY], a [ ]and the owner of
certain property located within the boundaries of the Districts (as defined herein), and
whose mailing address is [ADDRESS] (hereinafter, the “Property Owner,” and together
with District No. 1, “Parties”). For purposes of this Agreement, Property Owner’s
property is more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto (“Property”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, District No. 1 was established for
the purpose of planning, financing, constructing, operating, and/or maintaining certain
infrastructure, and is authorized to levy such taxes, special assessments, fees and other charges as
may be necessary in furtherance of District No. 1’s activities and services; and

WHEREAS, District No. 1, along with Tradition Community Development District Nos.
2-11 (the “Other Districts,” and collectively with District No. 1, the “Districts”) are parties to
that certain Amended and Restated District Development Interlocal Agreement dated April 8,
2008, and recorded in Official Records Book 2983, Page 1074, of the public records of St. Lucie
County, Florida (“District Interlocal Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Section 6.03 of the District Interlocal Agreement, the Other
Districts have delegated to District No. 1 the authority to take all actions necessary or desirable
with respect to the operation and maintenance of the Districts, including the levy and collection
special assessments in connection with the adoption of the Districts’ Adopted Budget (as defined
herein); and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Ch. 190, Florida Statutes, the Board of Supervisors
(“Board”) of District No. 1 adopted a final budget for the Districts (“Adopted Budget”) for the
fiscal year beginning October 1, 2025, and ending September 30, 2026 (“FY 2026”), which
appropriates out of the Districts’ revenues funds sufficient to undertake certain activities and
defray operations and maintenance expenditures contemplated in the Adopted Budget; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2025-18 (“Annual Assessment Resolution”),
District No. 1’s Board levied special assessments to fund the operations and maintenance of the

4932-9853-7248.1



Adopted Budget (“O&M Assessments”) in the amounts set forth in Adopted Budget and the
assessment roll attached to the Annual Assessment Resolution (“Assessment Roll”), and set forth
the method by which the O&M Assessments and the FY 2026 installment of the Districts’
previously levied debt service assessments (“Debt Assessment,” and together with the O&M
Assessments, “Assessments”) shall be collected and enforced; and

WHEREAS, Property Owner agrees that the O&M Assessments, which were imposed on
the lands within the Districts, including the Property, have been validly imposed and constitute
valid, legal, and binding liens upon the lands within the Districts; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Florida law, District No. 1 certified the Assessment Roll for
collection, which Assessment Roll includes in full or part that certain “Direct Collect Property”
(as defined in the Annual Assessment Resolution and further identified on the Assessment Roll)
for direct collection by District No. 1 in accordance with Florida law; and

WHEREAS, as the Property is identified on the Assessment Roll as Direct Collect
Property, District No. 1 and Property Owner desire to arrange for the direct collection and direct
payment of the Assessments levied against the Property.

NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual
covenants of the Parties, the receipt of which and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged,
the Parties agree as follows:

1. RECITALS. The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference are
incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement.

2. VALIDITY OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS. Property Owner agrees that the
Assessments have been validly imposed and constitute valid, legal, and binding liens upon the
lands within the Districts, including the Property. Property Owner hereby waives and relinquishes
any rights it may have to challenge, object to, or otherwise fail to pay such Assessments.

3. COVENANT TO PAY. Property Owner agrees to pay the Assessments
attributable to the Property, regardless of whether Property Owner owns the Property at the time
such payment is due or paid. Nothing herein shall prohibit Property Owner from prorating or
otherwise collecting these Assessments from subsequent purchasers of the Property. District No.
1 shall send a bill to Property Owner at least thirty (30) days prior to the first Assessment due date,
indicating the exact amount of the Assessment being certified for collection in FY 2026. The
Assessments attributable to the Property shall be due and payable on the dates and in the amounts
set forth in the Annual Assessment Resolution. District No. 1’s decision to collect Assessments by
any particular method - e.g., on the tax roll or by direct bill — does not mean that such method will
be used to collect special assessments in future years, and District No. 1 reserves the right in its
sole discretion to select collection methods in any given year, regardless of past practices.

4. ENFORCEMENT. This Agreement shall serve as an alternative, additional

method for collection of the Assessments. This Agreement shall not affect the Districts’ ability to
collect and enforce its Assessments by any other method authorized by Florida law. Property

4932-9853-7248.1



Owner acknowledges that the failure to pay the Assessments may result in the initiation of a
foreclosure action, or, at District No. 1’s sole discretion, delinquent Assessments may be certified
for collection on a future County tax bill. In the event that an Assessment payment is not made in
accordance with the schedule stated above, the whole of such Assessment — including any
remaining partial, deferred payments for FY 2026, shall immediately become due and payable;
shall accrue interest, penalties in the amount of one percent (1%) per month, and all costs of
collection and enforcement; and shall either be enforced pursuant to a foreclosure action, or, at
District No. 1’s sole discretion, collected pursuant to the Chapter 197, Florida Statutes (“Uniform
Method”) on a future tax bill, which amount may include penalties, interest, and costs of collection
and enforcement. Any prejudgment interest on delinquent Assessments shall accrue at the
applicable rate of any bonds or other debt instruments secured by the Assessments, or at the
statutory prejudgment interest rate, as applicable. In the event an Assessment subject to direct
collection by District No. 1 shall be delinquent, the District Manager and District Counsel, without
further authorization by the Board, may initiate legal proceedings pursuant to Chapter 170, Florida
Statutes, or other applicable law to collect and enforce the whole Assessment, as set forth herein.

5. NOTICE. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this
Agreement, but excluding invoices (“Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed
by First Class Mail, postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the Parties, at the addresses
set forth above. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed
received only upon actual delivery at the address set forth in this Agreement. Notices delivered
after 5:00p.m. (at the place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the
next business day. If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise
expire on a non-business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business
day. Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not
be regarded as business days. Counsel for the Parties may deliver Notice on behalf of the Parties.
Any Party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify the other Parties
and addresses of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the
same on five (5) days written notice to the Parties and addresses set forth in this Agreement.

6. AMENDMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and complete
expression of the Agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.
Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this Agreement may be made only by
an instrument in writing which is executed by both of the Parties hereto.

7. AUTHORITY. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by the
appropriate body or official of all parties hereto, each Party has complied with all the requirements
of law, and each Party has full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this
Agreement.

8. ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement may not be assigned, in whole or in part, by
either Party except upon the written consent of the other. Any purported assignment without such
consent shall be void.

9. DEFAULT. A default by either Party under this Agreement shall entitle the other
to all remedies available at law or in equity, which shall include, but not be limited to, the right of

4932-9853-7248.1



damages, injunctive relief and specific performance and specifically including the ability of
District No. 1 to enforce any and all payment obligations under this Agreement through the
imposition and enforcement of a contractual or other lien on property owned by the Property
Owner.

10. ATTORNEYS’ FEES. In the event that either Party is required to enforce this
Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the Parties agree that the prevailing Party shall
be entitled to recover from the other all costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and
costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings.

11. BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the formal parties
herein and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason hereof, to or for the benefit
of any third party not a formal party hereto. Nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied is
intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation other than the Parties
hereto any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any provisions or
conditions hereof; and all of the provisions, representations, covenants and conditions herein
contained shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the Parties hereto and their
respective representatives, successors and assigns.

12.  APPLICABLE LAW. This Agreement and the provisions contained herein shall
be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.

13. NEGOTIATION AT ARM’S LENGTH. This Agreement has been negotiated
fully between the Parties as an arm’s length transaction. The Parties participated fully in the
preparation of this Agreement with the assistance of their respective counsel. In the case of a
dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the Parties are each
deemed to have drafted, chosen and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be
interpreted or construed against any party.

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]

4932-9853-7248.1
20



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties execute this Agreement the day and year first

written above.

Attest:

Secretary/Assistant Secretary

Witness

EXHIBIT A Description of the Property

4932-9853-7248.1

TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

DISTRICT NO. 1

By:

Its:

[DEVELOPER OR LANDOWNER NAME],
a

By:
Name:
Title:

21



Tradition Community District Nos. 1-11 MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Supervisors
From: B. Frank Sakuma, Jr. CDM, District Manager
Date: September 17, 2025

Board Meeting Date: October 1, 2025

SUBJECT

Consider Approval of Services Agreement with All-Pro Home Maintenance & Repair LLC for
District Asset Inspection and Maintenance Services.

STAPE RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Approval of Services Agreement with All-Pro Home Maintenance & Repair
LLC for District Asset Inspection and Maintenance Services.

CENERAL INFORMATION

Regular inspection and maintenance of District assets are essential to ensure they remain
operational, safe, and in good condition. The proposed agreement provides for monthly
inspections and maintenance of the assets identified in Exhibit A of the draft agreement.

DISTRICT LECAL COUNOEL REVIEW

The District Legal Counsel will review and approve the contract for legal form and sufficiency.

EUNDING REVIEW

The annual cost of $10,560.00 is included in the FY 2025-2026 Operations & Maintenance
Budget.

Attachments

22



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES BETWEEN
THE TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICTS AND
ALL-PRO HOME MAINTENANCE & REPAIR, LLC

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 3™ day of September
2025, by and between:

TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NoO. 1, local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, whose
mailing address is 10521 SW Village Center Dr., Suite #203, Port St. Lucie, Florida
34987 (the “District No. 1); and

ALL-PRO HOME MAINTENANCE & REPAIR, LLC, a Florida limited liability
corporation, with a mailing address of 1245 SW Aragon Avenue, Port Saint Lucie,
Florida 34953 (“Professional,” together with District, “Parties”).

RECITALS
WHEREAS, District No. 1 is a local unit of special-purpose government created for the

purpose of planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure
and providing certain public services; and

ment District Nos. 2-

ts”) are parties to that
dated April 8, 2008,

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Section 2.03 of the District Interlocal Agreement, the Districts have
delegated to District No. 1 the authority to take all actions necessary or desirable with respect to
the operation and maintenance of the Districts, including entering certain agreements on their
behalf; and

WHEREAS, District No. 1 desires Professional to provide the Districts with certain services,
as described in more detail the statement of work attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Services”),
which is incorporated herein by this reference.

Now, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained and
the acts and deeds to be performed by the Parties, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged by the Parties, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows:

1. RECITALS. The recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated into the terms of
this Agreement.

2. Scope OF WoRK. The Professional will provide the Services as described in
Exhibit A. If District No.1 should desire additional work or services not provided in Exhibit A,

23



the Professional agrees to negotiate in good faith to undertake such additional work or services.
Upon successful negotiations, the Parties shall agree in writing to a work order, addendum,
addenda, or change order to this Agreement. The Professional shall be compensated for such
agreed additional work or services based upon a payment amount acceptable to the Parties and
agreed to in writing. No additional services shall be provided by the Professional unless done at
the direction of District No. 1.

3. COMPENSATION:; TERM.

A The initial term of this Agreement shall be from October 1, 2025, through
September 30, 2026, unless terminated earlier by either party in accordance with
the provisions of this Agreement. Thereafter, the Agreement shall be automatically
renewed for up to two (2) additional one-year (1) terms. As compensation for the
Services described in this Agreement, District No. 1 agrees to pay the Professional
in accordance with the terms set forth in Exhibit A.

B. The Professional shall maintain records conforming to usual accounting practices.
Further, the Professional shall render each invoice to District No. 1 in writing. Each
invoice shall contain, at a minimum, the Professional’s name, the invoice date, an
invoice number, an itemized listing of all costs billed on each invoice with a
sufficient description of each aIIowmg District No. 1 to approve each cost, the time
ddress or bank
d. Consistenfwith Florida’s Prompt
ices shall be due and
. 1. The monthly fees

reﬂected in the Dlstrlcts general fund budget. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
project-related out-of-pocket expenses are not billable to the Districts without the
prior written approval of District No. 1 for such expenses.

4. Termination. District No. 1 agrees that Professional may terminate this Agreement
for cause by providing ninety (90) days’ written notice of termination to the District No. 1;
provided, however, that District No. 1 shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any
failure under this Agreement. The Professional agrees that District No. 1 may terminate this
Agreement immediately for cause by providing written notice of termination to the Professional.
The Professional agrees that District No. 1 may terminate this Agreement without cause; provided
that District No. 1 shall provide thirty (30) days’ written notice of termination without cause. Upon
any termination of this Agreement, the Professional shall be entitled to payment for all Services
rendered up until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or offsets
District No. 1 may have against the Professional as the sole means of recovery for termination.

5. INSURANCE.

A The Professional shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the
following insurance:

24



I. Worker’s Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State
of Florida.

ii. Commercial General Liability Insurance covering the Professional’s legal
liability for bodily injuries, with limits of not less than One Million Dollars
($1,000,000) combined single limit bodily injury and property damage
liability, and covering at least the following hazards:

1. Independent Contractors Coverage for bodily injury and property
damage in connection with any subcontractors’ operation.

iii. Employer’s Liability Coverage with limits of at least One Million Dollars
($1,000,000) per accident or disease.

The Districts, their staff, consultants, officers, and supervisors shall be named as
additional insured. The Professional shall furnish District No. 1 with the Certificate
of Insurance evidencing compliance with this requirement. No certificate shall be
acceptable to District No. 1 unless it provides that any change or termination within
the policy periods of the insurance coverage, as certified, shall not be effective
within thirty (30) days of prior written notice to District No. 1. Insurance coverage
shall be from a reputable insurance carrier, licensed to conduct business in the State

da ained the required insurance,
igation to secure Such required insurance
the cost for thatffequired insurance and
shall furnlsh upon demand, all information that may be required in connection with

District No. 1’s obtaining the required insurance.
INDEMNIFICATION.

The Professional agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Districts and
their officers, agents, employees, successors, assigns, members, affiliates, or
representatives from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits, liens, demands,
costs, interest, expenses, damages, penalties, fines, judgments against the Districts,
or loss or damage, whether monetary or otherwise, arising out of, wholly or in part
by, or in connection with the Services to be performed by the Professional, its
subcontractors, its employees and agents in connection with this Agreement,
including litigation, mediation, arbitration, appellate, or settlement proceedings
with respect thereto.

Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements,
judgments, damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards,
court costs, arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorneys’ fees,
paralegal fees, expert witness fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in
bankruptcy proceedings), any interest, expenses, damages, penalties, fines, or

25



judgments against the Districts.

7. PuBLIC RECORDS. The Professional understands and agrees that all documents of
any kind provided to the Districts in connection with this Agreement may be public records, and,
accordingly, the Professional agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in
handling such records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. The
Professional acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the Districts is Special
District Services, Inc. (“Public Records Custodian”). Among other requirements and to the
extent applicable by law, the Professional shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by
the Districts to perform the Services; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide
the requested public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable
time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3)
ensure that public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records
disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the
contract term and following the contract term if the Professional does not transfer the records to
the Public Records Custodian of the Districts; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to
the Public Records Custodian, at no cost, all public records in the Professional’s possession or,
alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records
pursuant to Florida laws. When such public records are transferred by the Professional, the
Professional shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt

from public record rds st r st be provided to
patiblg\with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF
REGARDING THE

the Public Record:

formats.
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO
PROFESSIONAL’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING
TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC
RECORDS AT (772) 345-5119, BSAKUMA@SDSINC.ORG, OR 10521 SW
VILLAGE CENTER DR., SUITE #203, PORT ST. LUCIE, FLORIDA 34987.

9. GENERAL PROVISIONS

A CoNFLICTS. The terms of this Agreement and Exhibit A are intended to
complement each other, and to the extent they conflict, the provisions of this
Agreement shall control.

B. AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by
the appropriate body or official of District No. 1 and the Professional, both District
No. 1 and the Professional have complied with all the requirements of law, and both
District No. 1 and the Professional have full power and authority to comply with
the terms and provisions of this Agreement.

C. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. It is understood and agreed that at all times the

26



relationship of the Professional and its employees, agents, successors, assigns or
anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Professional to the Districts is the
relationship of an independent contractor and not that of an employee, agent, joint-
venturer, or partner of the Districts. Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted
or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of employer and employee
between the Districts and the Professional or any of its employees, agents,
successors, assigns or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Professional.
The Parties acknowledge that the Professional is not an employee for state or
federal tax purposes. The Professional shall hire and pay all of the Professional’s
or its employees, agents, successors, assigns or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by the Professional, all of whom shall be employees of the Professional
and not employees of the Districts and at all times entirely under the Professional’s
supervision, direction, and control.

In particular, the Districts will not: i) withhold FICA (Social Security) from the
Professional’s payments; ii) make state or federal unemployment insurance
contributions on the Professional’s behalf; ii1) withhold state or federal income tax
from payment to the Professional; iv) make disability insurance contributions on
behalf of the Professional; or v) obtain workers’ compensation insurance on behalf
of the Professional.

overned by and
without reference to

g ot njurisdiction infSt. Lucie, Florida. This
ch0|ce of venue is intended by the Parties to be mandatory and not permissive in
nature, and to preclude the possibility of litigation between the Parties with respect
to, or arising out of, this Agreement in any jurisdiction other than that specified in
this Section. District No. 1 and the Professional waive any right they may have to
assert the doctrine of forum non conveniens or similar doctrine, or to object to venue
with respect to any proceeding brought in accordance with this Section.

LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this Agreement shall
be deemed as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the Districts beyond any
statutory limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been
adopted by the Florida Legislature in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other
statute, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of any third party
for the purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be barred under the
Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of law.

THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the
Districts and the Professional and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or
by reason to or for the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this
Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall
be construed to confer upon any person or corporation other than the Districts and

27



the Professional any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement
or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions,
representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure
to the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the Districts and the Professional
and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns.

DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD-PARTY INTERFERENCE. A default
by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available
at law or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of actual
damages and/or specific performance. District No. 1 shall be solely responsible for
enforcing the Districts’ rights under this Agreement against any interfering third
party. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or impair District No. 1’s
right to protect its rights from interference by a third-party to this Agreement.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, together with Exhibit A, sets forth the
entire agreement of the Parties, and supersedes any prior agreements or statements
with respect to the subject matter hereof. No provision of this Agreement may be
amended, waived or modified unless the same is set forth in writing and signed by
each of the Parties to this Agreement, or their respective successors or assigns.

SEVERABILITY The invalidity or unenforceablllt of any one or more provisions
of the remaining
t held to be invalid or

Agreement

. the Professi@nal may assign this
Agreement W|thout the prlor written consent of the other. Any purported
assignment without such consent shall be null and void.

AMENDMENTS. This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written
instrument duly executed by both of the Parties.

SURVIVAL. In addition to such other provisions hereof which, by their terms,
survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement, Section 6 (Public
Records), Section 7 (Indemnification), and Section 9 (General Provisions) shall
survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement.

AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by
the appropriate body or official of the Parties. The Parties have complied with all
the requirements of law, and the Parties have full power and authority to comply
with the terms and provisions of this Agreement.

WAIVER. No breach of any term of this Agreement shall be deemed waived unless
expressly waived in writing by the party who might assert such breach. Any failure
or delay by either party to exercise any right, power, or privilege under this
Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any such right, power, or privilege

28



under this Agreement on that or any subsequent occasion. Any waiver by either
party, whether express or implied, of any provision of this Agreement, any waiver
of default, or any course of dealing hereunder, shall not affect such party’s right to
thereafter enforce such provision or to exercise any right or remedy in the event of
any other default or breach, whether or not similar.

COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,
including facsimile and PDF electronic copies, each of which, when executed and
delivered, shall constitute an original, and such counterparts together shall
constitute one and the same instrument. Signature and acknowledgment pages, if
any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this
document to physically form one document.

ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated fully
between the Parties as an arm’s length transaction. Both Parties participated fully
in the preparation of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel. In case of
a dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, both
Parties are deemed to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and the
doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed against either Party.

in this Agreement are for
r construction of

DescRIPTIVE HEADINGS. The descriptive headings

S. The Professional
rida Statutesi®to cooperate with the
mspector general in any investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing pursuant
to such section and to incorporate in all subcontracts the obligation to comply with
Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes.

COMPLIANCE WITH E-VERIFY. The Professional shall comply with and perform
all applicable provisions of Section 448.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, to the
extent required by Florida Statute, the Professional shall register with and use the
United States Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the
work authorization status of all newly hired employees. District No. 1 may
terminate this Agreement immediately for cause if there is a good faith belief that
the Professional has knowingly violated Section 448.09(1), Florida Statutes. By
entering into this Agreement, the Professional represents that no public employer
has terminated a contract with the Professional under Section 448.095(2)(c),
Florida Statutes, within the year immediately preceding the date of this Agreement.

STATEMENT REGARDING CHAPTER 287 REQUIREMENTS. The Professional
acknowledges that, in addition to all Laws and Regulations that apply to this
Agreement, the following provisions of Florida law (“Public Integrity Laws”)
apply to this Agreement:

29



I. Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, titled Public entity crime; denial or revocation
of the right to transact business with public entities;

ii. Section 287.134, Florida Statutes, titled Discrimination; denial or revocation of
the right to transact business with public entities;

iii. Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, titled Prohibition against contracting with
scrutinized companies;

iv. Section 287.137, Florida Statutes, titled Antitrust violations; denial or
revocation of the right to transact business with public entities; denial of economic
benefits; and

v. Section 287.138, Florida Statutes, titled Contracting with entities of foreign
countries of concern prohibited.

The Professional acknowledges that the Public Integrity Laws prohibit entities that
meet certain criteria from bidding on or entering into or renewing a contract with
governmental entities, including with the Districts (“Prohibited Criteria”). The
Professional also acknowledges that District No. 1 may terminate this Agreement
if the Professional is found to have met the Prohibited Criteria or violated the Public
i this Agreement,
rtners, shareholders,
ent of the entity, nor
, and in the event such
ict No. 1. By entering
mto thls Agreement the Professmnal agrees that any renewal or extension of this
Agreement shall be deemed a recertification of such status.

ANTI-HUMAN TRAFFICKING STATEMENT. The Professional does not use coercion
for labor or services as defined in Section 787.06, Florida Statutes, and the
Professional has complied, and agrees to comply, with the provisions of Section
787.06, Florida Statutes.

30



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and
year first above written.

Attest: TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT NO. 1

Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairman, Board of Supervisors

ALL-PRO HOME MAINTENANCE &
REPAIR, LLC

Witness By:
Its:

Exhibit A: ScceRA F I

31



Exhibit A

All-Pro Home Maintenance & Repair, LLC

1245 SW Aragon Avenue
Port St. Lucie, FL 34953
(772) 342-3709
mikesallpro@outlook.com

T0 Tradition CDD No. 1
¢/o SDS, Inc.
2501-A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens FL 33410

QUOTE

DATE: SEPTEMBER 9, 2025

JOB ADDRESS

PAYMENT TERMS

Tradition Complex - Common Area Facilities

Due Upon Receipt

QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE LINE TOTAL
Annual maintepance.contract fo adition CDD
facilities/stru $880.00/mo.
Please see attached fo, ﬂ
Annual contract will renew with 3% increase.
SUBTOTAL
SALES TAX
TOTAL $880.00/mo.
Approved: Date:
Print Name:

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!

32


mailto:mikesallpro@outlook.com

Monthly Inspection of the following properties/amenities:

e Exercise Stations (Map Location — 6)
e Waterfall (Map Location 7)
e Outlook Gazebos (Tradition Parkway, Crosstown Parkway)
o Tradition Parkway (Map Location 8a)
0 Crosstown Parkw (Map Location 8b)
e TIM Stops/Bike Stations
o Tradition Square (Map Location — 13b)
o0 Fern Lake Roundabout (Map Location —13c)
0 Regional Park (Map Location — 13d)
e 14.1-95 Marker Towers

0 North (Map Location — 14a)

e Mini Tower — Tradition Parkway roundabout (Map Location — 15)
e Boardwalks — Tradition Parkway (Map Location -16)
e PVC Fences— 1-95, Tradition Parkway (Map Location —17)
e Bridges — Railings & Posts
o Village Parkw.
o W :
o Lakel14P

Roundabo

SFp LocIon —-21)
NOTE: See attache e

Monthly Inspections would include any minor repairs and general cleaning (i.e., screws/bolts,
greasing locks & hinges, re-attaching fence slats, blowing out debris, etc.)

Includes monthly report with invoice noting any items addressed during the monthly inspection.

Any larger repairs or projects that are determined as necessary would be quoted and approved
and invoiced individually.

33



.
=

> e

et
LM

Ll —
s

=Tra

2= SW,Tradition PKV mll..l.miu m_rtnu_w.ﬂa_zﬂu.ﬂriﬁh.h

e 9.1 §

Sy T
iy
"l

Joe

1IN

W i S

-

AL

A Teh
TR

....l.”.qp.luul-r —— o = - - .s!..r.l..i.u..
g o o i s = = ety

T RO T ]
i e e
mf__._...ﬂ___.unm Commons

ﬂm -




Ty 800

1cdy AusdadgAuno

1S3 AQ palambd 13

MMS ===

i u1 ay

121s9,,
i

il

T,
>

147, "

: |
1 " A

% %-‘37’!@_ e  /
TR e

— "

- ol

Bije4/ms Sy

Usay



Pkwy

e -

i

i =l ol

s

s

e

S S e <y e, S ettt SRR © VP .
n,,....nnmmﬂh }SWiTradition Pkwy = e (—
W e tarinr -

e e

scovery,W

Flarris 1\

Tt

=

-
]

i
'\*ﬁ:'-'

il
o

i - b
- S WA <

-
-
—_
-
-
=




AMENDED AND RESTATED IRRIGATION FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
[TRADITION AND SOUTHERN GROVE]

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is
made and entered into this /¢ mday of M) ovepinec . 2016, by and between the City of Port
St. Lucie, a Florida municipal corporation (“City™). and Tradition Irrigation Company, LLC, a
Florida limited liability company (“Tradition Irrigation™),to amend and restate in their entirety:

(i) That certain Irrigation Franchise Agreement dated December 22, 2005
(“Original TWG Agreement”), between the City and Tradition [rrigation granted by City
Ordinance 05-184, as amended by that certain First Amendment dated March 8, 2011
(“First TWG Amendment.” and, together with the Original TWG Agreement, the “Prior
TWG Agreement™), and

(i) That certain lrrigation Franchise Agreement [Southern Grove], dated May
22, 2008 (“Original SG Agreement™), between the City and Tradition [rrigation granted
by City Ordinance 08-38, as amended by that certain First Amendment dated March §,
2011 (“First SG Amendment,” and, together with the Original SG Agreement, the “Prior
SG Agreement™).

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 9.09, Port St. Lucie City Charter, the City may, by or-
dinance, grant, renew, or extend a franchise; and

WHEREAS, by the Original TWG Agreement, the City granted to Tradition [rrigation a
non-exclusive franchise (“TWG Franchise™) for the provision of irrigation service in connection
with the “Specified Property” (as defined in the Original TWG Agreement, consisting of lands
within the developments known as Tradition and Western Grove) for a period of fifteen (15)
years; and

WHEREAS, by the First TWG Amendment, the City and Tradition Irrigation agreed to
extend the term of the TWG Franchise through and including December 31, 2030; and

WHEREAS, by the Original SG Agreement, the City granted to Tradition hrigation a
non-exclusive franchise (“*SG Franchise™) for the provision of irrigation service in connection
with the “Specified Property” (as defined in the Original SG Agreement, consisting of lands
within the development known as Southern Grove) for a period of fifteen (15) years from the et-
fective date of Ordinance 08-38; and

WHEREAS, by the First SG Amendment, the City and Tradition Iirigation agreed to ex-
tend the term of the SG Franchise through and including December 31, 2030; and

TRAD Am'd Rest'd Irrigation Franchise Agrmi - final

37



WHEREAS, by Resolution 16R-24, adopted April 25, 2016, the City Council of the City
revised the plan of development for the Western Grove Development of Regional Impact
(“WGDRI™ by, among other matters, transferring certain acreage from the Tradition Develop-
ment of Regional Impact into the WGDRI; and

WHEREAS, the City and Tradition Irrigation desire to amend and restate in their entire-
ty the Prior TWG Agreement and the Prior SG Agreement by (i} removing from the TWG Fran-
chise area all lands within the WGDRI as reconfigured by Resolution 16R-24, (ii} restating the
TWG and SG Franchises to encompass the area described in Composite Exhibit A (“Specified
Property™) as the combined “T&SG Franchise™ area, and (iii) extending the term of the T&SG
Franchise, all in the manner set forth in this Agreement.

1. Recitals. The above referenced recitals are frue and correct and incorporated
herein by reference.

2. Franchises Amended and Restated. This Agreement constitutes the amendment
and restatement of the non-exclusive TWG and SG Franchises for irrigation purposes granted by
the City to Tradition Irrigation, which franchises are hereby revised (a} to remove from the TWG
Franchise all lands within the WGDRI as reconfigured by Resolution 16R-24, (b} to restate the
TWG and SG Franchises to encompass the area described in Composite Exhibit A as the com-
bined T&SG Franchise area, and {(c) to extend the term of the T&SG Franchise as set forth in
Paragraph 3 below. Tradition [rrigation is hereby granted a non-exclusive franchise to provide
irrigation service within so much of the Specified Property as it may elect o service from time to
time.

3. Term. The term of this amended and restated franchise shall be through and in-
cluding December 31, 2047, as such date may be extended by agreement of the parties during the
term hereof, and the rates and charges for service shall be as charged by Tradition Irrigation fiom
time to time, subject to any regulation of such rates as may be required by the Public Service
Comimission under applicable law.

4, Franchise Fee. In consideration for the amendment and restatement of the TWG
and SG Franchises and grant of the T&SG Franchise as provided in this Agreement, commerc-
ing on the effective date of Ordinance 16-76_ (as referenced in Paragraphs 21 and 22 be-
low), Tradition hrigation agrees to pay a franchise fee to the City in the amount equal to six per-
cent (6%) of the gross receipts paid by users to Tradition Irrigation for irrigation water usage
service within the Specified Property. Said gross receipts shall exclude any hook-up charges,
capacity reservation fees, and connection charges collected. Such franchise fee shall be calculat-
ed quarterly and paid on or before the twenty-fifth (25" day of (i) Aptil for the first quarter

q

TRAD Am'd Rest'd [rrigation Franchise Agrmt - final

38




{January-March), (ii) July for the second quarter (April-June), (iii) October for the third quarter
(July-September), and (iv) January for the 4 quarter (October-December). The franchise fee
shall be based on funds actually collected {excluding taxes) by Tradition Irrigation and/or paid to
Tradition Irrigation in the preceding quarter by users for irrigation water usage service within the
Specific Property.

5. Reuse Water. Tradition Irigation and the City agree that reuse water will be
considered available to Tradition Irrigation when the City's reuse water is available for with-
drawal from the southern end of the interconnected lake system (to be constructed by others) that
will be located on the Tradition Regional Park site, provided that all easements and other rights
have been granted or conveyed to Tradition Irrigation by the City as necessary to install and op-
erate required pumping and distribution facilities, as shown on Exhibit B attached hereto. Within
twelve (12) months after written notice that the City has reuse water available, Tradition Irviga-
tion agrees to apply for and execute a Reuse Service Agreement/Permit to Connect for a mini-
mum of 1 million gallons per day, pay all associated fees, and accept such reuse water, Tradition
Irrigation acknowledges that it will provide and shall be responsible for all reuse storage and dis-
tribution facilities (except the on-site lake storage to be located on the Tradition Regional Park
site} within the franchise service area as permitted by the South Florida Water Management Dis-
trict.

6. Wells. Tradition Irrigation shall use (i) reuse water, (ii) surface water, or (iii)
groundwater in that order of priority as its source of irrigation water. Tradition Irrigation re-
serves the right to drill groundwater wells for irrigation use, provided that reuse water is not
available and it receives appropriate permits from the South Florida Water Management District
and written approval from the City, which approval shall not be unrecasonably withheld.

7. Miscellaneous. (a) Tradition Irigation agrees to be an active member of the Sun-
shine State One-Call of Florida, Inc., program under Chapter 556, Florida Statutes, which pro-
gram provides for members to locate their underground facilities when notified in advance of
planned excavations or demolitions, during the term of this Agreement. (b) Tradition Irrigation
agrees to promptly repair any damage to its facilitiés located on City property, provided the City
shall repair any damage that the City causes o Tradition Irrigation’s property. (c) Tradition hiri-
gation acknowledges and agrees that it will obtain a permit from the City for work conducted by
Tradition Irrigation within City owned property. (d) Tradition Irrigation acknowledges and
agrees that facilities constructed by Tradition Irrigation on property owned by the City shall be
subject to the City's reasonable specifications. (e) The City acknowledges and agrees that it
shall pay for irrigation water provided by Tradition Irrigation to City property at the usual and
customary rate charged to other Tradition lirigation customers.

TRAD Am'd Rest'd Irvigation Franchise Agrmt - final

39




8. Financial Statement. Within one hundred twenty (120) days of the end of Tradi-
tion Frrigation’s fiscal year, Tradition [rigation shall provide to the City Tradition Irrigation’s
annual financial statements included in the audit performed for Tradition Irrigation’s parent
company, which audit includes Tradition Irrigation. Alternatively, Tradition Irrigation may pro-
vide to the City such other financial information for Tradition Irrigation that the City agrees pro-
vides evidence of the proper calculation of the franchise fee provided for in Paragraph 4 above.

9, Notice. Every notice, demand, consent, approval, or other document or instru-
ment required or permitted to be given to any party to this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be delivered in person or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt
requested, to the following address (or such other address as the party may designate from time
to time in writing):

CITY: With a copy to:

City Manager City Attorney

121 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd. 121 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd.
Port St. Lucie, Florida 34984 Port St. Lucie, Florida 34984
TRADITION IRRIGATION: With a copy to:

Tradition lrrigation Company, LL.C
Attention: Wesley S, McCurry

10.  Default. In the event that Tradition Irigation defaults under this Agreernent by
failing to pay any fee required by this Agreement within thirty (30) days after receipt of written
notice by the City of Tradition Iirigation’s failure to pay said fee, then the City may schedule a
hearing before the City Council to consider revocation of the TWG and SG Franchises amended
and restated and granted as the T&SG Franchise by Ordinance 16-_ .

11.  Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and
any written assignee of Tradition lrrigation. In the event of the assignment of all or part of Tra-
dition Irrigation’s obligations under this Agreement, Tradition Irrigation shall notify the City in
writing within thirty (30) days of such assignment. Upon an assignment of this Agreement and
the assumption of Tradition Irrigation’s obligations by said Assignee, the Assignor/Grantor shall
be deemed released from all rights, obligations, and liabilities hereunder, and the Assign-

TRAD Am'd Rest'd brrigation Franchise Agrmt - final

40



ee/Grantee shall be deemed to have assumed all rights, obligations, and liabilities of the Assign-
or/Grantor hereunder.

12.  Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains and sets forth all the promises,
covenants, agreements, conditions, and understandings between the parties with respect to the
subject matter of this Agreement, and supersedes and replaces all prior negotiations and agree-
ments relating to such subject matter, including but not limited to the Prior TWG Agreement and
the Prior SG Agreement.

13.  Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, void, or
unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected or impaired and
each remaining provision shatl remain in full force and effect.

14,  Headings. Captions and paragraph headings contained in this Agreement are for
convenience and reference only and in no way define, describe, extend, or limit the scope or in-
tent of this Agreement, nor the intent of any provision hereof.

15.  Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted ac-
cording to the laws of the State of Florida and venue with respect to any litigation between the
patties related to this Agreement shall be St. Lucie County, Florida.

16. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts,
each of which shall be, and shall be taken to be, an original, and all coliectively deemed one in-
strument.

17.  Electronic Mail; Facsimile Transmission. Electronically mailed and telephoni-
cally transmitted facsimile copies of this Agreement, and any signatures thercon, shall be consid-
ered for all purposes as originals.

18.  Attorney’s Fees. In the event it shall be necessary for any party to this Agree-
ment to bring suit to enforce any provision hereof or for damages on account of any breach of
this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other, in addition to any
damages or other relief granted as a result of such litigation, all costs and expenses of such litiga-
tion and reasonable attorney’s fees (including attorney’s fees and fees and costs of appeals) as
fixed by a court of competence jurisdiction.

19, Amendments. This Agreement shall not be changed, modified, or amended ex-
cept by an instrument in writing and executed by the parties.

TRAD Am'd Rest'd Irrigation Franchise Agrmt - final

41



20, Entire Agreement; Severability, This Agreement constitutes the entire agree-
ment and understanding between the parties, and if any provision hereof is held to be invalid, the
remaining provisions shall not be affected or impaired.

21.  Ordinance. This Agreement is subject to Ordinance 16- amending and
restating the TWG and SG Franchises and granting the T&SG Franchise pursuant to Section

9.09, Charter of the City of Port St. Lucie.

22.  Date of Agreement. This Agreement shall be dated as of the effective date of
Ordinance 16-77p .

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]

TRAD Anr'd Rest'd lrrigation Franchise Agrmt - final

42



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the

date and year first written above.

ATTEST;

"/},/u// /ﬂf/ ?()

Karen A. Phillips, City Cle{k

WITNESSES:

/V)MAWW

Print Name

(0le, Wt

CITY OF PORT ST. LUCIE,
a Florida municipal corporation

By: 4 \4/%?‘/‘———_‘

“L , City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM
AND CORRECTNESS:

LB

City Attorney

TRADITION IRRIGATION
COMPANY, LLC
a Florida limited liability.company

QM»O

Print Name
Title: E:\c:l(.r*

Prnt \Iameg (22(_/;(,7 @Q J K,

TRAD Am'd Rest'd irigation Franchise Agrmt - final

43



EXHIBIT A

T&SG FRANCHISE AREA—SPECIFIED PROPERTY

TRAD Am'd Rest'd lrrigation Franchise Agrmt - final

44



N.T.S.
TRADITION IRRIG o ﬁ
COMPANY SERVICE AREA b X
Ha £ il N |
===~ TRADITION PAR FR (s
,! 3 (AY ‘ E !
i

- COMPANY

SERVICE AREA |

e

Z S

TRADITION [RRIGATION COMPANY n’

] : “SERVICE AREA" L 2
" QIUNVEYORS o
” 1. AENNEDY. PE. (DATE EXHIBIT A - ceaw e
[ 41 ese2is
1 0OF 1 4] 4234 ucKER couRT
FORT FIERCE, FL1495D

IE“ 2 TIZA52.24%5 PORT ST, LUCIE FLORIDA - woyree




EXHIBIT B

FUTURE LOCATION OF REUSE WATER WITHDRAWAL FACILITIES

TRAD Am'd Rest'd hrigation Franchise Agrmt - final

46



PROPOSED REUSE LINE
(RECLAIMED FROM PSL)
"SERVICE LOCATION"

TRADITION PARK

T.L.C. PUMP FACILITY TO i

WITHDRAWAL FROM LAKE \D

SERVICE _/

LOCATION

TRADITION IRRIGATION COMPANY
"SERVICE LOCATION"

QI SURVEYOAS

 Lanope e men

I RERNEOY, P E. \DATE EXHIBIT B
56218

1934 TUCKER CQUAT

FORT PIERCE, FL 4459

7 TT1-162:2455 PORT ST, LUCIE FLORIDA = ECRTRETY

Eﬁr‘m"wa iy T ol

azEg TFORIAIE ST AL TRIATAHIR 3RS

B TERTWAIATE 3¢ ALTHORIPARDN 11 )
4.7,




ASSIGNMENT OF AMENDED AND RESTATED
IRRIGATION FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
[TRADITION AND SOUTHERN GROVE]

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Tradition Irrigation Company, LLC, a Florida limited lia-
bility company (“Assignor™), hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto the Tradition Community
Development District No. 1, a community development district created pursuant to Chapter
190, Florida Statutes (“Assignee”), its successors and assigns, all right, title, and interest in and
to that certain Amended and Restated Irrigation Franchise Agreement [Tradition and Southern
Grove] (“Franchise Agreement”) dated November 14, 2016, with the City of Port St. Lucie, a
Florida municipal corporation (“City”), which assignment shall be effective as of the date set
forth herein. A copy of the Franchise Agreement is attached as an exhibit to this Assignment.
The Assignor shall remain responsible for all franchise fees due to the City under the Franchise
Agreement for periods prior to the effective date of this Assignment. Upon performance by the
Assignee of all obligations required of the Assignor under the Franchise Agreement, the Assign-
ee shall be entitled to all rights and interest thereunder in the same manner and with the same ef-
fect as if the Assignee had originally been granted the nonexclusive irrigation franchise by such

Agreement.
DATED as ofthe 7  day of August, 2017.
ASSIGNOR:

WITNESSES: TRADITION IRRIGATION
COMPANY, LLC, a Florida limited

Py —— liability company

Print Nafne: Lon Martin

G,LLC
ompan

W >6 JM}WC/ Dd C. Feltman Manager

Print Name: __ Teresa B. Simpson

Tradition - TIC - Assignment of Irrigation Franchise Agmt_53216383_1

48



STATE OF _ FLORIDA
COUNTY OF PINELLAS

The foregoing instrument as acknowledged before me this 7 day of August, 2017, by David
C. Feltman, Manager of PSL Acquisitions Operating, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company, the sole
member of TRADITION IRRIGATION COMPANY, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, who &
is personally known to me, or O has produced

y/d as
identification. (_%
N———

[Seal] Notary Public—State of _EMORIDA
Print Name: ___Lon Fong Martin
My Commission Expires: __6/19/2021

#* ® *

LON FONG MARTIN
NOTARY PUBLIC

B\ STATE OF FLORIDA
= Commi? GB116205
Expires 6/19/2021

Tradition - TIC - Assignment of Irrigation Franchise Agmt_53216383 |

49



ACCEPTANCE OF ASSIGNMENT

TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 1, as Assignee,
does hereby accept the foregoing Assignment of the above-described Amended and Restated Ir-
rigation Franchise Agreement [Tradition and Southern Grove]. The Assignee does hereby agree
to perform all obligations required of the Assignor under the Franchise Agreement and otherwise
to act in accordance with the terms and conditions stated therein, provided, however, that the As-
signor shall be responsible for all franchise fees due to the City for periods prior to the effective
date of the foregoing Assignment and the Assignee does not accept any obligation for such fees.

DATED s of the { @ day of August, 2017.
ASSIGNEE:

TRADITION COMMUNITY
ATTEST: DEVELOPMENT DI?CT NO. 1

{ %&MAQQL By
PrinkName: EL e.‘é hE!'!IQ

Title: Sae ~{
itle [ag ~

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ST. LUCIE

Title: (LW, @MNAN)

The foregoing instrument as acknowledged before me this £Z11\ day of August, 2017, by
i OF

_
\AES I EESOM) as {2 - of TRADITION COM-
MUNITY DEVELOPOMENT DISTRICT NO. 1, a(éﬁmmunity development distyict created

pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, who){{is personally knowh to(me, or s prod ted

P

as identifi

ation;

P ¥
P
P
P

[Seal] /Igofa/ry Puhli\c:it;tc ofFlorimﬁ
< Print Name: \ arto .| A=

My Commission Expires:-{ 1% 2 A 249

.‘-“;\V.'ﬂ;;;‘,, DANIEL B. HARRELL
& A% Commisslon # FF 200847
. L 7xd Expires February 28, 2019

!5,

HH
Sat
3, 3
"alﬂfu b Donded Theu Troy Fain Insurancs B3-385.7019

3

an

Tradition - TIC - Assignment of Trrigation Franchise Agmt_53216383_I

./PﬁntNamefMNkE’f’.?H ‘ )‘rr\m?(_tad\\) _

50



EXHIBIT TO ASSIGNMENT OF FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Amended and Restated Ireigation Franchise Agreement [ Tradition and Southern Grove]

‘Iradition - TIC - Assignment of Irrigation Franchise Agmt 53216383 _1

51



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2024
CONTENTS
PAGE
Independent AUdItOr’s REPOIT........ccvecieirierieieiirieieeeteteteestet et testest et ste st sesbesse e esessassesassessessssessassesens 1-3
Management’s Discussion and ANALYSIS .........cccvvueeirieinirieririetreeseeeesteeee ettt esens 4-7
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement Of NEt POSIHON .....c.coueueueueuiiriririeieieiec ettt 8
StAEMENE OF ACHVITIES ... eeeeeteteieeirteteteteteie sttt ettt ettt et et se s et e s esesese e e e e e esesesenens 9
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet — Governmental FUNAS .........c.oooiiiiiiiinii et 10
Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances
To Net Position of Governmental ACLIVILIES .........cceeveuerirueerireririeerieetrieesetesesee e seeaenes 11
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance — Governmental FUNdS ..........cccoooireirrieiiineeeeeee s 12
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement Of ACHVITIES .....ccecvvveiriereririeirieietrieesteteteteeet et e ettt sttt ssese e seesens 13
Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Fund............cocoooeeiiiinniieeee e 14
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance — Proprietary FUNd...........ccccooieieiiieiinieiccisececseeeesesesae e enens 15
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Fund...........cccococvvveeiiicinieiiciseeeeeeee e 16
Notes to the Financial Statements ............ccooueiririeinieinieieieieeeee e 17-28
Required Supplemental Information:
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budget and Actual — General Fund ................ 29
Notes to Required Supplementary Information...........ccccoeueeeeeeirieciecininieieeseseeeeeeie e veeas 30
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards .................cococevecunnnsc. 31-32
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with the Requirements of Section
218.415, Florida Statutes, Required by Rule 10.556 (10) of the Auditor General
of the State Of F1orida .........coouiiiiieiee e 33
Auditor’s Management Letter Required by Chapter 10.550, Florida Statutes .......................... 34-36

52



DIBARTOLOMEO, McBEE, HARTLEY & BARNES, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
Tradition Community Development District 1
Port St. Lucie, Florida

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each
major fund of Tradition Community Development District 1, (“District”) as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the
District as of September 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinions.

2222 Colonial Road, Suite 200 * Fort Pierce, Florida 34950 * 772-461-8833 * Fax: 772-461-8872
591 S.E. Port St. Lucie Blvd., * Port St. Lucie, Florida 34984 * 772-878-1952 * Fax: 772-878-1709

Member AICPA Member AICPA Division for CPA Firms Member FICPA

Private Company Practice Section 53

WWW.DMHBCPA.NET



Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

e [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and

0.
54



comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June
20, 2025, on our consideration of the Tradition Community Development District 1’s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, rules, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have also issued our report dated June 20, 2025 on our consideration of the District’s
compliance with requirements of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, as required by Rule
10.556(10) of the Auditor General of the State of Florida. The purpose of that report is to
provide an opinion based on our examination conducted in accordance with attestation Standards
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

&uﬁm}gﬂemq B, ”MU; $ Barves
DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes, P.A.
Fort Pierce, Florida

June 20, 2025

55



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Tradition Community Development District 1 (the “District”) discussion and analysis is
designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview
of the District’s financial activity and financial statements, (c) identify changes in the District’s
financial position, (d) identify any material deviations from the District’s budget, and (e) identify
individual fund issues or concerns.

Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current
year’s activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the
Auditor’s Report (beginning on page 1) and the District’s financial statements (beginning on page
8.)

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e Revenues exceeded expenses by $716,082 in the governmental funds, general fund
increased $22,994.

e Net position increased $1,908,954 included in the increase is the recording of depreciation
in the amount of $1,576,257.

e Total costs of all programs were $4,720,530 in 2024 compared to $5,189,956 in 2023.

e The District expended $3,791,788 towards debt service for governmental activities.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and
Statement of Activities (pages 8 & 9) provide information about the activities of the District as a
whole and present a longer-term view of the District’s finances. Fund Financial Statements begin
on page 10. For governmental activities, these Statements tell how these services were financed in
the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund Financial Statements also report
the District’s operations in more detail by providing information about the District’s most
significant funds.

REPORTING THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Our analysis of the District as a whole begins on page 8. One of the most important questions asked
about the District’s finances is, “Is the District as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the
year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information
about the District as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These
Statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to
the accounting used in most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and
expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two Statements report the District’s net position and changes in them. You can think of the
District’s net position — the difference between assets and liabilities — as one way to measure the
District’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s
net assets, is one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.

56



Current assets
Non-current assets
Capital assets
Total Assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net assets
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service/
Capital projects
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

Tradition Community Development District 1
Statement of Net Position

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES TOTAL
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
$ 9486295 § 7328925  $ 2431150  $ 2012214  $11917445  $11,554,522
978,687 1,114,177 - - 978,687 1,047,908
32,281,514 34,983,611 4065474 4334492 36346988 37923245
42,746,496 43.426,713 6,496,624 6346706 49243120 50,525,675
79,181 105,733 - - 79,181 92,068
3,899,465 3,699,268 363228 373,626 4,262,693 4,901,442
30,504,616 35,324,636 5,285,000 5,592,103 35789616 38355263
34,404,081 39,023,904 5648228 5965729 40052309  43256,705
(653,102) (2406389)  (1359945)  (1419295)  (2013047)  (2,778,858)
6,872,026 5,784,628 573,534 519,007 7,445,560 6,608,938
2,202,672 1,130,303 1,634,807 1281265 3,837,479 3,530,958
$ 8421596 § 4508542 S 848396 S 380977  $ 9269992 $ 7.361,038

The District assets are made up of primarily capital assets of $36,346,988 and liabilities are
mainly long-term debt in the amount of $35,789,616.

Governmental Activities

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of an entity’s financial
position. In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the District has one
activity. The changes in net position of governmental activities and business-type activities were
$1,908,954, as reflected below.

Program Revenues

General Revenues
Investment earnings
Other income

Equity transfer

Total Revenues

Expenses
General government
Physical environment
Interest on long-term debt
Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets

Net assets - beginning of year

Net assets - end of year

Tradition Community Development District 1
Changes in Net Position

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES TOTAL

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
$ 4534055 S 6098999 $ 1945821  $ 1942741  $ 6479876  $ 7,607,621
254,669 6,131 91,467 7,959 346,136 268,152
9,823 101,086 - - 9,823 220923
(206,351) (569.323) - - (206,351) (436222)
4,592,196 5,636,893 2,037,288 1,950,700 6,629,484 7,660,474
156,206 681,014 1,448,695 1,637,779 1,604,901 1,974,900
1,441,748 1,441,748 - - 1,441,748 1,441,748
1,432,956 1,613,721 240,925 250,725 1,673,881 1,773,308
3030910 3,736,483 1,689,620 1,888,504 4,720,530 5,189,956
1,561,286 1,900,410 347,668 62,196 1,908,954 2471,518
6,860,310 2,608,132 500,728 318,781 7,361,038 4,889,520
$ 8421596 $ 4508542 § 848396 $ 380977  $ 9269992  $ 7361038

57



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Governmental funds — all of the District’s services are reported in governmental funds, which focus
on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available
for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.
The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District’s general
government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps one
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to
finance the District’s programs.

Governmental Type Funds

As of year-end, the governmental funds (as presented on page 10) reported a combined fund balance
of $8,593,007 compared to the beginning of the year $7,876,925. Several of the governmental fund
expenditures are capital expenditure related and, therefore, may reflect capital expenditures (which
are reflected in the current financial resource-based Fund Financial Statements) as a spending of a
portion of available net assets or an increase in net assets from unspent net position. The General
Fund experienced a net increase of $22,994.

Proprietary Fund

The District maintains one type of proprietary fund, an enterprise fund. An enterprise fund is used to
report the same function presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The District uses an enterprise fund to account for the operations of the irrigation system
within the District.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

During the fiscal year 2023-2024 the District continues to maintain infrastructure projects to support
the Tradition master planned community. As of September 30, 2024, the District had $32,281,514
invested in land, infrastructure and construction in progress. The District’s business-type activities
reported net capital assets of $4,065,474.

Debt
At September 30, 2024, the District had $32,934,616 Bonds outstanding for its governmental
activities and $5,425,419 Bonds and note payable outstanding for its business-type activities. The

District’s debt represents bonds secured by a special revenue source. Additional information on the
District’s long-term debt can be found in the notes to financial statements.

58



ECONOMIC FACTORS, NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND OTHER INFORMATION

For the fiscal year 2025, the District anticipates that the cost of general operations will remain fairly
constant. In connection with the District's future infrastructure maintenance and replacement plan,
the District Board has included in the budget, an estimate of those anticipated future costs and has
assigned a portion of current available resources for that purpose. For the irrigation system, it is
anticipated that any future growth would come from commercial and residential development.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens and members with a general overview of the
District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have
questions about this report or need additional information, contact the District Finance Department
at 2501 A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410.

59



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2024

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
ASSETS
Cash $ 1,448,503 $ 1,555,258 $ 3,003,761
Accounts receivable, net 1,616,373 163,900 1,780,273
Assessments receivable 37,436 - 37,436
Due from other governments 21,179 - 21,179
Due from other funds - 17,900 17,900
Deposits 200 95 295
Restricted
Investments 6,362,604 693,997 7,056,601
Prepaid bond insurance (net of amortization) 978,687 - 978,687
Capital assets
Depreciable 13,396,192 3,485,291 16,881,483
Non-depreciable 18,885,322 580,183 19,465,505
TOTAL ASSETS 42,746,496 6,496,624 49,243,120
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding (net of amortization) 79,181 - 79,181
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 79,181 - 79,181
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 290,980 $ 90,956 $ 381,936
Accrued interest payable 576,177 120,463 696,640
Due to other funds 17,900 - 17,900
Unearned revenue - 10,000 10,000
Deposits 584,408 1,390 585,798
Non-current liabilities
Due with one year 2,430,000 140,419 2,570,419
Due in more than one year 30,504,616 5,285,000 35,789,616
TOTAL LIABILITIES 34,404,081 5,648.228 40,052,309
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (653,102) (1,359,945) (2,013,047)
Restricted for debt service/capital projects 6,872,026 573,534 7,445,560
Unrestricted 2,202,672 1,634,807 3837479
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 8,421,596 $ 848,396 $ 9269992

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement

-8-
60



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended September 30, 2024

Net (Expense) Revenues and

Program Revenues Changes in Net Position
Charges for Operating Governmental Business-
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activities Type Activities Total
Governmental Activities
General government 156,206 $ 156,206 $ - $ - $ - $ -
Maintenance & operations 1,441,748 2,942 .445 2,448 1,503,145 - 1,503,145
Interest on long-term debt 1,432,956 1,432,956 - - - -
Total Governmental Activities 3,030,910 4,531,607 2,448 1,503,145 - 1,503,145
Business-Type Activities
Irrigation expenses 1,448,695 1,945,821 - - 497,126 497,126
Interest on long-term debt 240,925 - - - (240,925) (240,925)
Total Business-Type Activities 1,689,620 1,945,821 - - 256,201 256,201
General Revenues:
Investment earnings 254,669 91,467 346,136
Other Income 9,823 - 9,823
Equity transfer (206,351) - (206,351)
Total General Revenues 58,141 91,467 149,608
Change in Net Position 1,561,286 347,668 1,908,954
Net Position - October 1, 2023 6,860,310 500,728 7,361,038
Net Position - September 30, 2024 $ 8421,596 $ 848,396 $ 9269992

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement

-9.
61



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2024

MAJOR FUNDS TOTAL
GENERAL CAPITAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND PROJECTS ACTIVITIES
ASSETS
Cash $ 1,448,503 $ - $ 1,448,503
Accounts receivable 1,616,373 - 1,616,373
Assessments receivable 12,984 24,452 37436
Due from other funds 21,179 475,130 496,309
Deposits 200 - 200
Restricted
Investments - 6,362,604 6,362,604
TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,099,239 $ 6,862,186 $ 9,961,425
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 290,980 $ - $ 290,980
Due to other funds 414,763 78,267 493,030
Deposits 584,408 - 584,408
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,290,151 78,267 1,368,418
FUND EQUITY
Nonspendable
Deposits 200 - 200
Assigned
Maintenance reserves 169,000 - 169,000
Restricted
Debt service - 3,221,462 3,221,462
Capital projects - 1,534,119 1,534,119
Unassigned 1,639,888 2,028,338 3,668,226
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 1,809,088 6,783,919 8,593,007

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY § 3,099,239 $ 6,862,186 $ 9,961,425

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement

-10 -
62



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES
TO NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
September 30, 2024

Total Governmental Fund Balances in the Balance Sheet $ 8,593,007

Amount reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Position are different because:

Capital asset used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds:

Governmental capital assets 69,700,662
Less accumulated depreciation (37,419,148)

Deferred charges on refunding of long-term debt are shown as
deferred outflows of resources in the government-wide financial
statements: however, this amount is not reported in the governmental
financial statements. 79,181

Governmental funds record bond insurance costs as expenditures when these
costs are first incurred. Prepaid bond insurance is amortized over the term
of the refunding bonds in the government-wide financial statements. 978,687

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Accrued interest payable (576,177)
Governmental bonds payable (32,934,616)
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 8421596

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement

-11 -
63



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Year Ended September 30, 2024

MAIJOR FUNDS TOTAL
GENERAL CAPITAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND PROJECTS ACTIVITIES
REVENUE

Stormwater fees $ 1,077 $ - $ 1,077

Engineering revenue fees 1,750 - 1,750

On-roll assessments 298,178 4,230,602 4,528,780

Developer contributions 2,448 - 2,448

Other income 9,823 - 9,823

Interest income 395 254274 254,669
TOTAL REVENUES 313,671 4,484,876 4,798,547
EXPENDITURES

General government 84,326 - 84,326

Debt service:

Principal - 2,320,000 2,320,000
Interest - 1,471,788 1,471,788
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 84,326 3,791,788 3,876,114
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 229,345 693,088 922,433
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES):

Equity transfer (206,351) - (206,351)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES) (206,351) - (206,351)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 22,994 693,088 716,082
FUND BALANCE

Beginning of year 1,786,094 6,090,831 7,876,925

End of year $ 1,809,088 $ 6783919 $ 8,593,007

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement

-12 -

64



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended September 30, 2024

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 716,082
Amount reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

funds, but the repayment reduces long-term labilities in the
statement of net assets. 2,320,000

Current year provision for depreciation (1,441,748)

Certain items reported in the Statement of Activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported
expenditures in the governmental funds:

Change in accrued interest payable 38,832
Provision for amortization of bond premium 10,228
Provision for amortization of deferred charges (12,887)
Provision for amortization of bond nsurance (69,221)
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 1,561,286

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement

-13-

65



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION — ENTERPRISE FUND
September 30, 2024

BUSINESS-TYPE

ACTIVITIES
ENTERPRISE
FUND
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 1,555,258
Accounts receivable, net 163,900
Due from other funds 17,900
Deposits 95
Restricted
Investments 693,997
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,431,150
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets
Land 580,183
Equipment & furniture 544458
Infrastructure 2,220,365
Plant 1,705,146
5,050,152
Less accumulated depreciation 984,678
Total capital assets (net of depreciation) 4,065,474
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 4,065,474
TOTAL ASSETS $ 6,496,624
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 90,956
Accrued interest payable 120,463
Deposits 1,390
Unearned revenue 10,000
Current portion long term labilities 140419
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 363,228
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term liabilities 5,285,000
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 5,285,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,648,228
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (1,359,945)
Restricted for debt service 573,534
Unrestricted 1,634,807
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 848,396

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement

-14 -



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN
FUND NET POSITION — ENTERPRISE FUND
Year Ended September 30, 2024

BUSINESS-TYPE

ACTIVITIES
ENTERPRISE
FUND
OPERATING REVENUES
Irrigation services $ 1,945,821
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 1,945,821
OPERATING EXPENSES
General & administrative 1,314,186
Depreciation 134,509
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,448,695
OPERATING INCOME 497,126
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income 91,467
Interest expense (240,925)
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) (149.458)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 347,668
NET POSITION
Beginning of year 500,728
End of year $ 848,396

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement

-15 -

67



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS — ENTERPRISE FUND
Year Ended September 30, 2024

BUSINESS-TYPE

ACTIVITIES
ENTERPRISE
FUND
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers & users $ 1,973,001
Payments for goods & services (1,575,241)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 397,760
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal paid on capital debt (166,684)
Interest paid on capital debt (243,425)
NET CASH USED IN CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (410,109)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments (27,998)
Interest income 91,467
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 63,469
NET INCREASE IN CASH 51,120
CASH
Beginning of Year 1,504,138
End of Year $ 1,555,258

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income $ 497,126
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation 134,509
(Increase) Decrease in:

Accounts receivable 27,180
Increase (Decrease) in:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (261,055)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 397,760

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement

-16-



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Tradition Community Development District 1 (the “District”)
conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. The District was
formerly known as Westchester Community Development District 1 and lawfully changed its name
to Tradition Community Development District 1 effective August 14, 2006. The following is a
summary of the more significant policies:

Reporting Entity

The District is an independent unit of special-purpose local government of the State of Florida
created by law and established in accordance with the Uniform Community Development District
Act of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended by ordinance of St. Lucie County, Florida,
effective on August 21, 2001 as amended. The Act provides for a five member Board of
Supervisors to serve as the governing body of the District. The District has no component units. Its
purpose is to manage and finance basic community development systems, facilities and services,
including capital infrastructure.

Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements - Government-wide financial statements, including
the statement of net assets and statement of activities, present information about the District
as a whole. These statements include the non-fiduciary financial activity of the primary
government and its component units.

Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct
expenses and program revenues for each function or program of the District’s
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
service, program, or department and are thereby clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by
the program and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues are presented as general revenues, with certain exceptions. The comparison of
direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental
function or business segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the
District.

The effects of inter-fund activity have been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements.

-17 -
69



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation (continued)

Fund Financial Statements - Fund financial statements report detailed information about the
District in the governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds. The focus of governmental
fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each
major fund is reported in a separate column. Non-major funds are aggregated and reported
in a single column. Because the focus of governmental fund financial statements differs
from the focus of government-wide financial statements, the reconciliation is presented
with each of the governmental fund financial statements.

Major Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the District. All general
tax revenue and other receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to
another fund are accounted for in this fund. The general operating expenditures, fixed
charges and capital improvement costs that are not paid through other funds are paid from
the general fund.

Capital Project Fund - Capital project funds are established to provide common
infrastructure to support the master planned community.

Major Proprietary Fund Types

Irrigation Fund - The irrigation fund accounts for the irrigation operations of the District
that are financed and supported primarily by user charges.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues of the District’s enterprise fund are charges to customers
for sales and services. Operating expenses of the enterprise fund include the cost of sales
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Assessments

Assessments are non-ad valorem assessments on benefited lands within the District. Assessments
are levied to pay for the operations and maintenance of the District. The fiscal year for which annual
assessments are levied begins on October 1 with discounts available for payments through February
28 and become delinquent on April 1. The District's annual assessments for operations are billed
and collected by the County Tax Collector. The amounts remitted to the District are net of
applicable discounts or fees and include interest on monies held from the day of collection to the
day of distribution.

-18-
70



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Irrigation Fees

Irrigation fees received are available for the payment of debt service on the District’s bonds and for
costs associated with the operation and maintenance of existing system. These fees are included in
restricted investments on the Enterprise Fund Statement of Net Position until spent for the
designated purpose.

Receivables and Payables

Accounts receivable and revenues for the enterprise fund are shown net of an allowance for
uncollectible amounts. For irrigation system accounts receivable, there was no allowance
recorded as of September 30, 2024.

Equity Classifications

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report non spendable and restricted fund
balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside
parties for use for a specific purpose. Assignments of fund balance represent tentative
management plans that are subject to change. Under GASB 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, fund balances are required to be reported according to the
following classifications:

Non-Spendable Fund Balance — Amounts that are (a) not in spendable form or (b)
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. “Not in spendable form”
includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash (such as inventories and
prepaid amounts) and items such as long-term amount of loans and notes receivable,
as well as property acquired for resale. The corpus (or principal) of a permanent fund
is an example of an amount that is legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.

Restricted Fund Balance — Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes
stipulated by (a) external resource providers such as creditors (by debt covenants),
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance — Amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action (resolution) of the Board of Supervisors. Commitments
may be changed or lifted only by the Board of Supervisors taking the same formal
action (resolution) that imposed the constraint originally. Resources accumulated
pursuant to stabilization arrangements sometimes are reported in this category.

-19-
71



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Equity Classifications (continued)

Assigned Fund Balance — Includes spendable fund balance amounts established by
the Board of Supervisors that are intended to be used for specific purposes that are
neither considered restricted nor committed.

Unassigned Fund Balance — Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for
the general fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been
assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to
specific purposes within the general fund. Unassigned fund balance may also include
negative balances for any governmental fund if expenditures exceed amounts
restricted, committed, or assigned for those specific purposes.

The District first uses committed fund balance, followed by assigned fund balance and then
unassigned fund balance when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in
any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Florida Statutes require state and local governmental units to deposit monies with a financial
institution classified as a “Qualified Public Depository,” which is a state insurance pool for banks
and other financial institutions. The pool requires each bank to render as collateral a percentage of
all state and local monies on deposit. Upon default of a particular financial institution within the
pool, the pooled collateral is used to reinstate the state and local government deposits. This pool is
additional insurance above the federal depository insurance. The District has cash deposits only
with qualifying institutions as of September 30, 2024.

Deposits and Investments

The District's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand and demand deposits
(interest and non-interest bearing).

The District has elected to proceed under the Alternative Investment Guidelines as set forth in
Section 218.415 (17) Florida Statutes. The District may invest any surplus public funds in the
following:

a) The Local Government Surplus Trust Funds, or any intergovernmental investment pool
authorized pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act;

b) Securities and Exchange Commission registered money market funds with the highest credit
quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency;

c) Interest bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified public depositories;

d) Direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury.

-20-
72



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deposits and Investments (continued)

Securities listed in paragraph ¢ and d shall be invested to provide sufficient liquidity to pay
obligations as they come due. In addition, surplus funds may be deposited into certificates of deposit
which are insured.

The District records all interest revenue related to investment activities in the respective funds and
reports investments at fair value.

Fair Value Credit Risk Maturities
Money Market Mutual Funds - First American Weighted average of the
Government Obligation Fund CL Y $ 693997 S&P AAAm fund portfolio: 31 days

Weighted average of the
US Bank N/A Open Monthly Commercial Paper 6,362,604 S&P A-1+ Open ended
$ 7.056.601

Credit Risk:

Florida Statutes require the money market mutual funds held by the District to have the highest
credit quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency.

Interest Rate Risk:

Florida Statutes state that the investment portfolio be structured in such manner as to provide
sufficient liquidity to pay obligations as they come due. All holdings are currently invested to meet
current obligations.

Concentration of Credit Risk:

The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any one issuer. More than 5%
of the District’s investments are with one issuer.

Custodial Credit Risk:

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty,
the District will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in
the possession of an outside party. At September 30, 2024, the District is exempt from this
requirement.

Fair Value Measurement - When applicable, the District measures and records its investments using
fair value measurement guidelines established in accordance with GASB Statements. The
framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques.

-21 -
73



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Custodial Credit Risk: (continued)

These guidelines recognize a three-tiered fair value hierarchy, in order of highest priority, as
follows:

e Level 1: Investments whose values are based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical
investments in active markets that the District has the ability to access;

e Level 2: Investments whose inputs - other than quoted market prices - are observable either
directly or indirectly; and,

e Level 3: Investments whose inputs are unobservable.
The fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any

input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used should
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land and land improvements, buildings and improvements,
infrastructure, machinery and equipment, are reported in the governmental activities column.

The District defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more and an
estimated useful life in excess of one year. The valuation basis for all assets is historical cost.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend its useful life are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Depreciation of capital assets is computed and recorded by utilizing the straight-line method.
Estimated useful lives of the various classes of depreciable capital assets are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 7-39 years
Infrastructure 20-40 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years

Unearned Revenue

Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been received,
but not yet earned.

-22 -
74



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred
and amortized over the life of the Bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of applicable premiums or
discounts. Bond issuance costs are expensed when incurred.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize premiums and discounts, as
well as issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt
service expenditures.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

The statement of net position reports, as applicable, a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to
future reporting period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until that time. For example, the District would record deferred outflows of
resources related to debit amounts resulting from current and advance refundings resulting in the
defeasance of debt (i.e. when there are differences between the reacquisition price and the net
carrying amount of the old debt).

The statement of net position reports, as applicable, a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to
future reporting period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that
time. For example, when an asset is recorded in the governmental fund financial statements, but the
revenue is not available, the District reports a deferred inflow of resources until such times as the
revenue becomes available.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Management Company

The District has contracted with a management company to perform management advisory services,
which include financial and accounting advisory services. Certain employees of the management
company also serve as officers (Board appointed non-voting positions) of the District. Under the
agreement, the District compensates the management company for management, accounting,
financial reporting, and other administrative costs.

-23-
75



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2024

NOTE B - BUDGETARY INFORMATION

The District is required to establish a budgetary system and an approved Annual Budget. Annual
Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for the
general fund. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The District follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements.

a) Each year the District Manager submits to the District Board a proposed operating budget
for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1.

b) Public hearings are conducted to obtain public comments.

c) Prior to October 1, the budget is legally adopted by the District Board.

d) All budget changes must be approved by the District Board.

e) The budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

f) Unused appropriation for annually budgeted funds lapse at the end of the year.

NOTE C - ASSET PURCHASE

On August 10, 2017, the District entered into an asset purchase agreement with Tradition Irrigation
Company, LLC. As a result the District created an enterprise fund to account for the transactions of
the irrigation system. As part of the agreement the District services the developments known as
Tradition and Southern Groves, supplying quality water service under a Franchise Agreement with
the City of Port St. Lucie, Florida. The District issued $6,095,000 in Irrigation System Revenue
Bonds in order to finance the purchase. The District received $5,051,151 in capital assets including
$580,183 in land.

NOTE D - RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

At September 30, 2024, the District reported the following restricted asset accounts:

Enterprise
Funds
Investments
Reserve account - bond compliance $ 371,025
Interest account - bond compliance 126,791
Sinking fund - bond compliance 177,454
Maintenance reserve - bond compliance 18,727

Total restricted investments $ 693,997

-24 -
76



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2024

NOTE E — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows:

October 1, September 30,
2023 Increases Decreases 2024
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land and improvements $ 13,639,574 $ - $ - $ 13,639,574
Construction in progress 5,245,748 - - 5,245,748
Total capital assets, not being
depreciated 18,885,322 - - 18,885,322
Capital assets, being depreciated
Infrastructure 25,692,842 - - 25,692,842
Improvements other
than buildings 25,122,498 - - 25,122,498
Total capital assets, being
depreciated 50,815,340 - - 50,815,340
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure 13,576,474 867,534 - 14,444,008
Improvements other
than buildings 22,400,926 574,214 - 22,975,140
Total accumulated depreciation 35,977,400 1,441,748 - 37419,148
Total capital assets, being
depreciated - net 14,837,940 (1,441,748) - 13,396,192
Governmental activities capital
assets - net $ 33,723,262 $(1,441,748)  $ - $ 32,281,514

Depreciation expense recorded in governmental activities was $1,441,748 for 2024.

-5 -

77



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2024

NOTE E — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

A summary of changes on proprietary fixed assets follows:

October 1, September 30,
2023 Increases Decreases 2024
Business-type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 580,183 $ - $ - $ 580,183
Total capital assets, not being
depreciated 580,183 - - 580,183
Capital assets, being depreciated
Plant 1,705,146 - - 1,705,146
Equipment & furniture 544,458 - - 544,458
Infrastructure 2,220,365 - - 2,220,365
Total capital assets, being
depreciated 4,469,969 - - 4,469,969
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Plant 349,126 56,838 - 405,964
Equipment & furniture 160,081 22,162 - 182,243
Infrastructure 340,962 55,509 - 396,471
Total accumulated depreciation 850,169 134,509 - 984,678
Total capital assets, being
depreciated - net 3,619,800 (134,509) - 3,485,291
Governmental activities capital
assets - net $ 4,199,983 $ (134509) $ - $ 4065474

Depreciation expense recorded in business-type activities was $134,509 for 2024.
NOTE F - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Governmental Activities Debt

$53.170,000 Special Assessment Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 — On April 9, 2014, the District
issued $53,170,000 Special Assessment Refunding Bonds, Series 2014. The Bonds are payable in
annual principal installments through May 2035. The bond bears interest ranging from 2.0% to
4.5% payable semi-annually on the first day of each May and November. Principal is due serially
each May 1, commencing May 2015. The bonds are collateralized through pledged liens on
approximately 3,100 acres of residential and commercial land.

-26-
78



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1

NOTE F - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2024

The following is a summary of the changes in long-term obligations for the year ended September

30, 2024:

Special Assessment
Refunding Bonds, Series
2014

Unamortized bond premium

The debt service requirements for the long-term obligations is as follows:

Ending Due Within

Additions Reductions Balance One Year
$ 35,110,000 $ - $ 2,320,000 $32,790,000 $§ 2,430,000
35,110,000 - 2,320,000 32,790,000 2,430,000
154,844 - 10,228 144,616 -
$ 35264844 3 - $ 2330,228 $32934616 $§ 2,430,000

September 30, Principal Interest Total

2025 2,430,000 1,385,831 $ 3,815,831
2026 2,530,000 1,288,631 3,818,631
2027 2,635,000 1,187,431 3,822,431
2028 2,740,000 1,082,031 3,822,031
2029 2,855,000 972,431 3,827,431
2030-2034 16,195,000 2,983,225 19,178,225
2035-2035 3,405,000 160,650 3,565,650
32,790,000 9,060,230 $ 41,850,230

Business-Type Activities Debt

$6.095.000 Irrigation System Revenue Bonds (Existing System), Series 2017 — On August 1,

2017, the District issued $6,095,000 Irrigation System Revenue Bonds (Existing System), Series
2017. The Bonds are payable in annual principal installments through October 2047. The bond
bears interest ranging from 4.0% to 4.5% payable semi-annually on the first day of each April and
October. Principal is due serially each October 1, commencing October 2018.

Note Payable

The District is obligated under a settlement agreement with the City of Port St. Lucie, to make
quarterly payments of $10,421 (bearing no interest) through October 2024.

-27 -

79



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2024

NOTE F - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Business-Type Activities Debt (continued)

The following is a summary of transactions of long-term obligations in the enterprise fund for the
year ended September 30, 2024:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Irrigation System Revenue
Bonds (Existing System),
Series 2017 $ 5,540,000 $ - § 125000 $ 5415000 $ 130,000
Note Payable 52,103 - 41,684 10,419 10,419
$ 5,592,103 $ - $ 166684 § 5425419 $ 140419

The debt service requirements for the long-term obligations is as follows:

September 30, Principal Interest Total
2025 $ 140,419 $ 238,325 $ 378,744
2026 135,000 233,025 368,025
2027 140,000 227,525 367,525
2028 145,000 221,825 366,825
2029 155,000 215,438 370,438
2030-2034 880,000 964,125 1,844,125
2035-2039 1,100,000 742,500 1,842,500
2040-2044 1,380,000 464,625 1,844,625
2045-2048 1,350,000 124,875 1,474,875

$ 5425419 $ 3432263 $ 8,857,682

NOTE G - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; and environmental remediation. The District has
obtained commercial insurance from independent third parties to mitigate the costs of these risks;
coverage may not extend to all situations. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded
commercial insurance coverage over the past three years.

NOTE H - DEPENDENCY ON SUPPORT

The District receives the majority of its funding from local tax revenue. A reduction in the level of
advances would have a substantial effect on the District’s projects and activities.

-28-
80



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL —
GENERAL FUND
Year Ended September 30, 2024

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL FAVORABLE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Stormwater fees $ 830 $ 1,076 $ 1,077 $ 1
On-roll assessments 6,876 7,311 298,178 290,867
Developer contributions - - 2,448 2,448
Other income 424 4,699 9,823 5,124
Interest income - - 395 395
TOTAL REVENUES 8,130 13,086 313,671 300,585
EXPENDITURES
Administrative 3921 4,743 76,629 (71,886)
Maintenance 4,209 10,496 7,697 2,799
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 8,130 15,239 84,326 (69,087)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES - (2,153) 229,345 231,498
Surplus/(Deficit) (Notes to RSI) - 2,153 - 2,153
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES § - $ - $ 229345 $ 233,651

-29.-

81



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 1
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The District is required to establish a budgetary system and an approved Annual Budget for the
general fund. The District’s budgeting process is based on estimates of cash receipts and cash
expenditures which are approved by the Board. The budget approximates a basis consistent with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (generally accepted
accounting principles).

An operating budget was adopted and maintained by the governing board for the District pursuant
to the requirements of Florida Statutes. The budget is adopted using the same basis of accounting
that is used in preparation of the fund financial statements. The legal level of budgetary control, the
level at which expenditures may not exceed budget, is in the aggregate. Any budget amendments
that increase the aggregate budgeted appropriations must be approved by the Board of Supervisors.
Actual general fund expenditures exceeded appropriations for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2024.

The variance between budgeted and actual general fund revenues is considered significant and
additional revenue was received during the year for the purpose of providing equity transfers as per
the Inter-local agreements with the other Districts. The actual general fund expenditures for the
current fiscal year were higher than budgeted amounts due primarily to costs being higher than
anticipated.

-30-
82



DIBARTOLOMEO, McBEE, HARTLEY & BARNES, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Tradition Community Development District 1
Port St. Lucie, Florida

We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
Tradition Community Development District 1, as of September 30, 2024 and for the year ended,
which collectively comprise the Tradition Community Development District 1’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 20, 2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial
reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent
or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

2222 Colonial Road, Suite 200 * Fort Pierce, Florida 34950 * 772-461-8833 * Fax: 772-461-8872
591 S.E. Port St. Lucie Blvd., * Port St. Lucie, Florida 34984 * 772-878-1952 * Fax: 772-878-1709

Member AICPA Member AICPA Division for CPA Firms Member FICPA

Private Company Practice Section 83

WWW.DMHBCPA.NET



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

&uﬁu}&w B, “Mﬂg; + Barves
DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes, P.A.
Fort Pierce, Florida

June 20, 2025

-32-
84



DIBARTOLOMEO, McBEE, HARTLEY & BARNES, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF
SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES, REQUIRED BY RULE 10.556(10) OF THE
AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

Board of Directors
Tradition Community Development District 1
Port St. Lucie, Florida

We have examined Tradition Community Development District 1, Port St. Lucie, Florida’s
(“District”) compliance with the requirements of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, in accordance
with Rule 10.556(10) of the Auditor General of the State of Florida during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2024. Management is responsible for District’s compliance with those requirements.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on District’s compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the District complied, in all
material respects, with the specified requirements referenced in Section 218.415, Florida Statutes.
An examination involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about whether the District
complied with the specified requirements. The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures selected
depend on our judgment, including an assessment of the risks of material noncompliance, whether
due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination
on the District’s compliance with specified requirements.

We are required to be independent and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
relevant ethical requirements relating to the examination engagement.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee,
members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor
General, management, and the Board of Supervisors of Tradition Community Development District
1, Port St. Lucie, Florida and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

&uBM}&Qemo B, ”Mbb + Barves
DiBartolomeo, McBee Hartley & Barnes, P.A.
Fort Pierce, Florida

June 20, 2025

2222 Colonial Road, Suite 200 * Fort Pierce, Florida 34950 * 772-461-8833 * Fax: 772-461-8872
591 S.E. Port St. Lucie Blvd., * Port St. Lucie, Florida 34984 * 772-878-1952 * Fax: 772-878-1709

Member AICPA Member AICPA Division for CPA Firms Member FICPA

Private Company Practice Section 85

WWW.DMHBCPA.NET



DIBARTOLOMEO, McBEE, HARTLEY & BARNES, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Management Letter

Board of Directors
Tradition Community Development District 1
Port St. Lucie, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the Tradition Community Development District 1
(“District”) as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, and have issued our report
thereon dated June 20, 2025.

Auditors’ Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the
Auditor General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards and Independent Accountants' Report on an
examination conducted in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, AT-C Section 315,
regarding compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor
General. Disclosures in those report, which are dated June 20, 2025, should be considered in
conjunction with this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding
annual financial audit report. Corrective actions have been taken to address findings and
recommendations made in the preceding annual audit.

Official Title and Legal Authority

Section 10.554(1)(1)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and
legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be
disclosed in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The
information required is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

2222 Colonial Road, Suite 200 * Fort Pierce, Florida 34950 * 772-461-8833 * Fax: 772-461-8872
591 S.E. Port St. Lucie Blvd., * Port St. Lucie, Florida 34984 * 772-878-1952 * Fax: 772-878-1709

Member AICPA Member AICPA Division for CPA Firms Member FICPA

Private Company Practice Section 86

WWW.DMHBCPA.NET



Financial Condition and Management

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply
appropriate procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the
District has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes,
and to identify the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the
District did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(1)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied
financial condition assessment procedures for the District. It is management’s responsibility to
monitor the District’s financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in
part on representations made by management and the review of financial information provided
by same.

Section 10.554(1)(1)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any
recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not
have any such recommendations.

Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) Programs

As required by Section 10.554(1)(1)6.a., Rules of the Auditor General, the District did not
authorize a PACE program pursuant to Section 163.081 or Section 163.082, Florida Statutes, did
not operate within the District’s geographical boundaries during the fiscal year under audit.

Specific Information

As required by Section 218.39(3)(c), Florida Statutes, and Section 10.554(1)(1)6, Rules of the
Auditor General, the Tradition Community Development District 1 reported:

a. The total number of district employees compensated in the last pay period of the
District’s fiscal year as N/A.

b. The total number of independent contractors to whom nonemployee compensation was
paid in the last month of the district’s fiscal year as 13.

c. All compensation earned by or awarded to employees, whether paid or accrued,
regardless of contingency as N/A.

d. All compensation earned by or awarded to nonemployee independent contractors,
whether paid or accrued, regardless of contingency as $512,713.

e. The District does not have any construction projects with a total cost of at least
$65,000 that are scheduled to begin on or after October 1 of the fiscal year being
reported.

f. The District amended its final adopted budget under Section 189.016(6), Florida
Statutes, as included on page 29.

-35-
87



As required by Section 218.39(3)(c), Florida Statutes, and Section 10.554(1)(i)7, Rules of the
Auditor General, the Tradition Community Development District 1 reported:

a. The rate or rates of non-ad valorem special assessments imposed by the District range
from $349 to $1,688 per residential unit.

b. The total amount of special assessments collected by or on behalf of the District as
$4,528,780.

c. The total amount of outstanding bonds issued by the District as $38,205,000.

Additional Matters

Section 10.554(1)(1)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance
with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants
the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not have any
such findings.

Purpose of this Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, the Board of Supervisors, and applicable
management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

&uﬁm}gﬂemq B, ”MU; $ Barves
DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes, P.A.
Fort Pierce, Florida

June 20, 2025

-36 -
88



Tradition Community District Nos. 1-11

MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Supervisors
From: B. Frank Sakuma, Jr. CDM, District Manager
Date: September 23, 2025

Board Meeting Date: October 1, 2025

SUBJECT

Consider Authorizing Aquatic Maintenance Request for Proposals.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommend the Board authorize an Aquatic Maintenance Request for Proposals, or bring
back a renewal to the existing agreement for consideration at the November meeting.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The current aquatic maintenance contracted vendor is Solitude Lake Management LLC. The
maintenance agreement will expire on November 30, 2025. The agreement may be extended
by the Board by annual renewal for up to two additional years.

DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL REVIEW
District Legal Counsel will assist if directed to issue an RFP.

FUNDING REVIEW

Aquatic Maintenance is included in the proposed FY 2025-2026 Operations & Maintenance
Budget.

Attachments

89



TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

Aquatic Maintenance Services
St. Lucie County, Florida

Notice is hereby given that the Tradition Community Development District No. 1 (“District”) will accept proposals from
qualified firms (“Proposers”) interested in providing aquatic maintenance services for Tradition Community Development District
Nos. 1 through 11 (the “Districts”), all as more specifically set forth in the Project Manual. The Project Manual, including among
other materials, contract documents, project scope and any technical specifications, will be available for public inspection and may
be obtained by sending an email to John Gallagher at jgallagher@sdsinc.org. In order to submit a proposal, each Proposer must (1)
be authorized to do business in Florida, and hold all required state and federal licenses in good standing; and (2) have at least five
(5) years of experience with aquatic maintenance projects. The District reserves the right in its sole discretion to make changes to the
Project Manual up until the time of the proposal opening, and to provide notice of such changes only to those Proposers who have
attended the pre-proposal meeting.

There will be a mandatory pre-bid proposal conference on October 15, 2025, at 9:30 AM. This meeting will be held at
Tradition Town Hall located at 10799 SW Civic Lane, Port St. Lucie, FL 34987. Firms desiring to provide services for this project
must submit one (1) written proposal AND a PDF file on a flash-drive no later than October 31, 2025 at 2:00 p.m. (EST) at 10521
SW Village Center Dr., Suite #203, Port St. Lucie, FL 34987, Attention: Frank Sakuma. Additionally, as further described in the
Project Manual, each Proposer shall supply a proposal bond or cashier’s check in the amount of $25,000 with its proposal. Proposals
shall be submitted in a sealed package that shall bear “RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (Tradition Community
Development Districts — Aquatic Maintenance) ENCLOSED” on the face of it. Proposals received after the time and date stipulated
above may be returned un-opened to the Proposer. Any proposal not completed as specified or missing the required proposal
documents may be disqualified.

The District Manager will conduct a public meeting to publicly open the proposals on October 31,2025 at2:00 p.m. (EST)
at 10521 SW Village Center Dr., Suite #203, Port St. Lucie, FL 34987. No official action of the District’s Board will be taken at
this meeting, and it is held for the limited purpose of opening the RFP responses. The meeting is open to the public and will be
conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law. This meeting may be continued to a date, time, and place to be specified
on the record at the meeting. Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical
impairment should contact the District Office at (772) 345-5119 at least five (5) calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are
hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service by dialing 7-1-1, or 1-800-955-8771 (TTY) / 1-800-955-8870
(Voice), for aid in contacting the District.

The submitted proposals will be reviewed by the District’s Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) at a public meeting to be
held on November 5, 2025 at 11:00 A.M. at the Tradition Town Hall located at 10799 SW Civic Lane, Port St. Lucie, FL 34987.
Proposers are required to attend the meeting of the District’s Board.

Any protest regarding the Project Manual, including but not limited to protests relating to the proposal notice, the proposal
instructions, the proposal forms, the contract form, the scope of work, the maintenance map, the specifications, the evaluation
criteria, the evaluation process, or any other issues or items relating to the Project Manual, must be filed in writing, within seventy-
two (72) hours after issuance of the Project Manual. The formal protest setting forth with particularity the facts and law upon which
the protest is based shall be filed within seven (7) calendar days after the initial notice of protest was filed. Failure to timely file a
notice of protest or failure to timely file a formal written protest shall constitute a waiver of any right to object or protest with
respect to aforesaid plans, specifications or contract documents. Additional information and requirements regarding protests are set
forth in the Project Manual and the District’s Rules of Procedure, which are available from the District Manager, 10521 SW Village
Center Dr., Suite #203, Port St. Lucie, FL 34987, Attention: Frank Sakuma, (772) 345-5119.

Rankings will be made based on the Evaluation Criteria contained within the Project Manual. Price will be one factor
used in determining the proposal that is in the best interest of the District, but the District explicitly reserves the right to make such
award to other than the lowest price proposal. The District has the right to reject any and all proposals and waive any technical
errors, informalities or irregularities if it determines in its discretion it is in the best interest of the District to do so. Any and all
questions relative to this project shall be directed in writing by e-mail only to John Gallagher at jgallagher@sdsinc.org, with a
further copy to Lindsay Whelan at Lindsay. Whelan@KutakRock.com.

Tradition Community Development District No. 1
Frank Sakuma, District Manager

90


mailto:msheppard@gmscfl.com
mailto:msheppard@gmscfl.com
mailto:Lindsay.Whelan@KutakRock.com

AQUATIC MAINTENANCE SERVICES REQUEST FOR
PROPOSALS
TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
St. Lucie County, Florida

EVALUATION CRITERIA

1. Personnel & Equipment (20 Points Possible)

This category addresses the following criteria: skill set and experience of key management and
assigned personnel, including the project manager and other specifically trained individuals who will
manage the property; present ability to manage this project; proposed staffing levels; capability of
performing the work; geographic location; subcontractor listing; inventory of all equipment; etc. Skill set
includes certification, technical training, and experience with similar projects. Please include resumes,
certifications, etc., with proposal. Please also provide evidence of the proposer’s ability to meet deadlines
and be responsive to client needs.

2. Experience (25 Points Possible)
This category addresses whether a Proposer clearly distinguishes past & current record and

experience of the Proposer in similar projects; volume of work previously awarded to the firm; past
performance in any other contracts; etc.

3. Understanding Scope of RFP (15 Points Possible)

This category addresses the following issues: Does the proposal demonstrate an understanding of
the District’s needs for the services requested? Does it provide all information as requested by the District
including pricing, scheduling, staffing, etc.? Does it demonstrate clearly the ability to perform these
services? Were any suggestions for “best practices” included? Does the proposal as a whole appear to be
feasible, in light of the scope of work? Did the contractor use the forms provided from the Project Manual
in responding to the proposal?

4, Financial Capacity (5 Points Possible)

This category addresses whether the Proposer has demonstrated that it has the financial resources
and stability as a business entity necessary to implement and execute the work. Proposer should include
proof of ability to provide insurance coverage as required by the District as well as audited financial
statements, or similar information.

5. Price (20 Points Possible)

Twenty (20) points will be awarded to the Proposer submitting the lowest bid for Parts 1 - 4 (the
Contract Amount). AN AVERAGE OF ALL FIVE YEARS PRICING IS TO BE CONSIDERED WHEN
AWARDING POINTS FOR PRICING - THE INITIAL TERM AND ALL FOUR ANNUAL
RENEWALS. All other proposers will receive a percentage of this amount based upon a formula which
divides the low bid by the proposer’s bid and is then multiplied by the number of points possible in this part
of the Price evaluation.

91



EXAMPLE: Contractor “A” turns in a bid of $210,000 and is deemed to be low bid and will receive
the full 20 points. Contractor “B” turns in a bid of $265,000. Bid “A” is divided by Bid “B” then multiplied
by the number of points possible (20). (210,000/265,000) x 20 = 15.85, therefore, Contractor “B” will
receive 15.85 of 20 possible points. Contractor “C” turns in a bid of $425,000. Bid “A” is divided by Bid
“C” then multiplied by the number of points possible (20). (210,000/425,000) x 20 = 9.88, therefore,
Contractor “C” will receive 9.88 of 20 points.

6. Reasonableness of ALL Numbers (15 Points Possible)

Up to fifteen (15) points will be awarded as to the reasonableness of ALL numbers, quantities &
costs.

Proposer’s Total Score (100 Points Possible)

END

92



Financial Report:
Under Separate Cover



	Cover Page
	Agenda Page
	Proof of Publication
	Sept 3, 2025 Meeting Minutes & PH
	WA #19-143-196; 11233 SW Park Village Court - Pool
	Res No. 2025-21; Adopting Annual Report of Goals, Objectives, & Performance Measures and Standards
	Direct Collection Agreement For Fiscal Year 2026
	Maintenance Services Agreement 
	Irrigation Franchise Agreement
	Financial Audit - 2024
	RFP's for Aquatic Maintenance 
	Financial Report (Under Separate Cover)



